
BOARD MEETING: Regular 
DATE:   Wednesday, October 17, 2018 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 
PLACE:   Naples High School Cafeteria 
 

I. Meeting Called to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Adopt the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of October 17, 2018  (Board Action) 
IV. Executive Session        (Board Action) 
V. Public Hearing 

- District-Wide School Safety Plan   
VI. Pledge of Allegiance 
VII. Public Comments: The Board of Education invites you, the residents of our school community, to feel 

comfortable in sharing matters of interest or concern that you might have with us.  The Board President 
will be happy to recognize those of you who wish to speak.  We would ask that you come forward and 
please identify yourself before presenting your thoughts. 
   Those items brought to the attention of the Board during this time may be taken under consideration for 
future response or action. (Individual comments will be limited to three minutes.) 
    As a matter of courtesy, we ask that issues related to specific School District personnel or students be 
brought to the attention of the Superintendent of Schools privately.  Thank you for this consideration.  
 

Board Reponse: The Board of Education is committed to keeping communication open and transparent.  
The Board of Education President will be working with the Board and the Superintendent to make every 
effort to respond to public comments directed to the Board of Education at previous meetings, during the 
next scheduled meeting. 

VIII. Points of Interest  
IX. Superintendent Recognitions & Updates 

 Kudos 
 Claims Auditor Reports 
 November 7, 2018 Board of Education Meeting 
 Emergency Go Home Drill 
 Discussion Regarding Department Chair Reports 
 Capital Project Update 
 Girls Varsity Basketball 
 Response to Intervention (RTI) at the Elementary School Level  

X. Board Reports          
 Budget Committee 

XI. Administrative Reports       
• Secondary Principal  
• Student Representative

XII. Minutes          (Board Action) 
 Regular Meeting of October 3, 2018 

XIII. District-Wide School Safety Plan      (Board Action) 
XIV. Business / Financial        (Board Action) 

 Policy Updates 
 School District Safety Team Members 
 Extra-Curricular Club: Name Change 

XV. Personnel         (Board Action) 
• Retirement Resignation 
• Resignation 
• 2018-2019 Summer Hours 

XVI. Consent Agenda Items        (Board Action)  
 Committee on Special Education, CPSE & 504 Committee Recommendations 
 Volunteers 
 Substitute(s) 

- Teacher Aides 
XVII.   Adjournment         (Board Action)  



Regular Meeting                     October 17, 2018 
 

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Naples Central School held on 
Wednesday, October 17, 2018 at _______ p.m. in the Naples High School Cafeteria. 
 

Members Present: Robert Brautigam  Thomas Hawks  
   Joseph Callaghan  Kelley Louthan     
   Carter Chapman  Gail Musnicki 
   Brent Gerstner   Maura Sullivan 
   Jacob Hall   Owen Kennedy    
 

Members Absent:  
 

Also Present:  Matthew Frahm, Mitchell Ball, Kristina A. Saucke, E. Bridget Ashton, Katherine 
Piedici and Anneke Radin-Snaith.  
 

A quorum being present, the meeting was called to order at _______ p.m. by Board President 
Jacob Hall. 
 

Motion:    
2nd:  
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the agenda of the Regular Meeting of  
October 17, 2018 as presented. 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 

Motion:      
2nd:    
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at _______ p.m. for 
the purpose of discussing the employment history of a particular person or persons. 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 

Time out of Executive Session: _____ p.m. 
 

Motion:    
2nd: 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the minutes of the following meetings: 

 Regular Meeting of October 3, 2018 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:      
2nd:    
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board of Education approves 
the Naples Central School District-Wide Safety Plan as presented. 
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 



Regular Meeting                     October 17, 2018 
 

Motion:    
2nd: 
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following Business resolutions as presented: 
 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following policies, regulations and forms 
as presented: 

- Policy #5551: Allocation of Title I, Part A Funds in the District 
-  Policy #6121: Sexual Harassment in the Workplace 
-  Policy #6121F: Naples Central School District Complaint Form for Sexual Harassment  
                             in the Workplace 
- Policy #7134: Education of Students in Foster Care 
- Policy #7222: Diploma and/or Credential Options for Students with Disabilities 
-  Policy #7223: Participation in High School Graduation Exercise 
-  Policy #7554: Student Gender Identity 

 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the 2018-2019 School District Safety Team 
  Members as listed: 
 1) Bridget Ashton (High School Principal) 

2) Phil Bariteau (High School Teacher) 
3) Robert Birdsall (Elementary School Teacher) 
4) Pat Elwell (Fire Chief/Mechanic) 
5) Laura Finnan (High School Nurse) 
6) Laurie Fitzgerald (Elementary School Teacher) 
7) Matt Frahm (Superintendent/Safety Team Chair) 
8) Matt Green (High School Teacher) 
9) Carrie Grove (Elementary School Teacher on Special Assignment) 
10) Chad Hunt (Director of Facilities and Transportation) 
11) Katie Infantino (Elementary School Librarian) 
12) Rick Jaus (School Resource Officer—Ontario County Deputy) 
13) Monica Kastner (High School Counselor) 
14) Heather Clark (Assistant Principal/Data Coordinator) 
15) Tammy Matthews (Elementary School Psychologist) 
16) Brian Meteyer (Elementary School Psychologist) 
17) Bill Murphy (High School Counselor) 
18) Darlene Wolfanger (Teacher Aide) 
19) Kris Saucke (Elementary School Principal) 
20) Melissa Steenburgh (High School Psychologist) 
21) Kelly VandeSande (Elementary School Nurse) 
22) Anneke Radin-Snaith (Director of Technology, Instruction, and PD) 

 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the change in name of the Extra-curricular 
Club GO-GO Coffee to CC and More, with the current funds in the GO-GO Coffee account to 
remain with CC and More.  

 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
 



Regular Meeting                     October 17, 2018 
 
Motion:  
2nd:  
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following personnel item as presented:  
 

•  Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the retirement resignation of Stephen Draxl, Cleaner, 
with regret, effective November 17, 2018. 

 

 Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following Extra-Curricular resignation, with regret: 

- Kara Houppert, NCS Girls Basketball Club Advisor, effective October 12, 2018 
 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approved 2018-2019 summer hours for the following: 
Carrie Grove, teacher, for up to ten (10) hours at the rate of $30.00/hour. 

 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:    
2nd:  
Resolved, that the Board of Education, upon the recommendation of Superintendent 
Matthew Frahm, approves the Consent Agenda Items as presented: 
 

a. Resolved, that the Board of Education approves committee recommendations from the 
following meetings: 

-    Committee on Special Education actions of September 25, 2018; September 26, 2018; 
      October 1, 2018 and October 5, 2018. 
- Committee on Preschool Special Education actions of September 18, 2018. 
- 504 Committee actions of September 25, 2018 

 

b. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Volunteers: 
Name              Position Address 
Brittany Fleischman      Volunteer  144 South Main St, Apt 3, Naples, NY 14512 
Jill Hotelling  Volunteer 4710 West Avenue, Middlesex, NY 14507  
Farren Kinton  Volunteer 6362 Dugway Road, Canandaigua, NY 14424  
Laura Shattell  Volunteer 5859 Cook School Rd., Prattsburgh, NY 14873    
Shaylynn Whipple  Volunteer 6275 Italy Valley Road, Naples, NY 14512  
 

c. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Substitute 
Appointments, pending a successful background clearance report provided to the  
school as a result of the fingerprinting process: 
Name   Position  Address 
Samantha Fleischman Teacher Aide   18 Sunnyside Estates, Middlesex, NY 14507  
Jessica Keefer  Teacher Aide  5347 Babcock Road, Naples, NY 14512   
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:    
2nd: 
There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of October 17, 2018 is hereby adjourned at 
______________. 
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 



Board of Education Auditor Report - October 2018 Board Meeting

From April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018 I have approved warrants 0163-0211 for a total amount of
$5,525,359.14 for the fourth quarter of the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The following errors have occurred
and were corrected:

1. (3) Backup paperwork missing information (no requisitions)

2. (1) Missing Signatures

3. (1) Incorrect Remit Address (Address change)

A total of 5 errors from 662 transactions (0.008%)

Respectfully submitted

(p f]

Evelyn Lena





���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� !��"#!$%�&'�(�)*+� &,-./01�2345�67588/�9�:7;8<0=�>?@A

BCDEFGC�HFIFJKLCMNGOPQRST�RST�TR�UVV�RW�TQX�YTSZX[TY�U[Z�YTUWW�\X\]X̂Y�_QR�_XV̀R\XZ�TQX�̀̂R_ZY�U[Z�̂XâXYX[TXZbUaVXY�cP�̀VS]Y�U[Z�UTQVXTd̀Y�ZŜd[e�f̂UaXgXYT�TQdY�hXÛi�jR[êUTSVUTdR[Y�TR�jUdTVd[�fRRZ_d[k�_QR�_UY�Ùl[R_VXZeXZ�]h�TQX�mdVZ_RRZ�nZS̀UTdR[�jX[TX̂UY�PTSZX[T�RW�TQX�oR[TQ�WR̂�PXaTX\]X̂�d[�TQX�jSVd[Ûh�p̂TY�q̂RêU\i



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� !�� !�!��"�#$�%&!�' (�)�*�'$+(,�(&-$.�/�$0!+�(123�*!2�'�422�00$*�3#&4$*��)�!�$�5$$6�7�$3!8�9:;<= .�2�!��>*$(.&�>�4#&(?�"&!�4�@�&4$*?�&(.�!�$+*�� 00$22��!*&!$,+$20#&22�)�*�3*$2$(!+(,�!��&.-+(+2!*&!+�(��(�AB9C�&'� !�!5��2! .$(!* (�' 2+($22$2D�"�*($*��!�*$�&(.�E�*$�&(.�F��F��"�))$$�&(.E�*$8��!&4�! ($.�)�*�-�*$�+()�*-&!+�(�&'� !�!�$2$�2! .$(!�#$.' 2+($22$2?�20�$. #$.�!���3$(�+(�#&!$�G0!�'$*<@�&(6�4� �!��&##��)�!�$�2! .$(!2�5���3&*!+0+3&!$.�&2�&0!�*2�+(�� *H+2!*&0!$.�H*+I+(,�$I$(!��(�ABJCD�F*+K(�L*&M$*?�E&$I$�N*+,�!?%�2$-&*4�>4+(,!�(?�O+06�"#$&*-&(?�F+&((&�1$2!?�&(.�E&P�>* $(8��� !�� !�!��� *�2!&,$�0*$5�&2�5$##D�"&*&�" 22�(�Q&6$��0�5&*!M?�!$)&(�%&.&6?�"&+!#4(�Q�($2?�&(.��!$##&�L*&M$*8=RHG�<�C!��,*&.$*�S&(�=$(($4�0�-3#$!$.�!�$�T+,�#&(.$*�>+6$�*&0$�(�ABJ:?�5�+0��+2�&�UV�-+#$�*� (.�!*+38@�&(6�4� �!��&##�!�$�)&-+#+$2�5���&!!$(.$.?�&(.�!��!�$�)&0 #!4�&(.�2!&))�-$-'$*2�5���5$*$��$*$!��5$#0�-$�� *�0�-- (+!4�!��O&3#$2�T+,���0���#�. *+(,�G3$(�T� 2$��(�@� *2.&4?�ABJU8�@�$*$+2�2��- 0��!��'$�3*� .��)�+(�!�+2�' +#.+(,<"�(,*&! #&!+�(2�!��&##��)�� *�$#$0!$.�"#&22�GK0$*2�)�*�!�$�9VJWXJA�20���#�4$&*<Y�2�� !�� !�!��� *�L&##�Y!�#$!$2�)�*�!�$+*�23+*+!�&(.�.$.+0&!+�(�!��!�$�F*$$(�E&0�+($<�L+(,$*�Z&6$2�!&(.+(,2�&2��)�JVBWBJWD�J8�L&##�9VJW�F+*#2�1&*2+!4�L+(,$*�Z&6$2�@$((+2D�:�X�[�X�V�98�L&##�9VJW�>�42�1&*2+!4�L+(,$*�Z&6$2���00$*D�A�X�U�X�J�U8�L&##�9VJW�F+*#2�1&*2+!4�L+(,$*�Z&6$2���00$*D�W�XU�X�J[8�L&##�9VJW�>�42�Q1�L+(,$*�Z&6$2D�CXUXV:8�L&##�9VJW�F+*#2�Q1�L+(,$*�Z&6$2���00$*D�9�X�\�X�J\8�L&##�9VJW�F+*#2�E�.8BQ1�"�-'+($.�@$((+2D�[�X�\�X�V�C8�L&##�9VJW�>�42�E�.+]$.�N$2!�L+(,$*�Z&6$2���00$*D�J�X�9�X�J�W8�L&##�9VJW�F+*#2�E�.+]$.�N$2!�L+(,$*�Z&6$2���00$*D�9�X�U�X�JA8�L&##�9VJW�>�42�1&*2+!4�N$2!�L+(,$*�Z&6$2�F�#)D�J�X�[�X�V^_̀ab�cdedfghiajk̀l�mnn�opmpq"�(,*&! #&!+�(2�!��!�$�)�##�5+(,�2! .$(!2��(�$&*(+(,�!�$���(�*��)�'$+(,(&-$.�!��!�$�9VJA�Or��EY�s�($�J:�Y*$&�Y##X�!&!$�Q (+�*�T+,��"�(0$*!>&(.D=&!$�E&*6?�"#&*+($!�>*4((�H&I+2?�@* -3$!�Y.&-�>&4?�@*�-'�($"�(,*&! #&!+�(2�!��!�$�)�##�5+(,�2! .$(!2��(�$&*(+(,�!�$���(�*��)�'$+(,(&-$.�!��!�$�9VJA�Or��EY�s�($�J:�Y*$&�Y##X�!&!$��$(+�*�T+,��"�(0$*!>&(.DQ$22+0&��0�5&*!M?�L# !$�L$#+0+!4�T !0�+(2�(?�@* -3$!�Q&0�'��0�5&*!M?�T�*(�+(�L@�$�Q (+�*�T+,��L$2!+I&#�5+##�'$��$#.�&!�T�*($##�T+,���0���#��(�L*+.&4?�O�I$-'$*�9X��&! *.&4?O�I$-'$*�U?�9VJW8�@�$��$(+�*�T+,��L$2!+I&#�5+##�'$��$#.�&!�t#-+*&�T+,���0���#��(�L*+.&4?�O�I$-'$*�J\X��&! *.&4?�O�I$-'$*�JC?�9VJW8��! .$(!2�5$*$�2$#$0!$.�!��!�$2$�,*� 32�'&2$.��(�&!!&+(+(,��+,��20�*$2��(�!�$+*�Or��EY�2�#�)$2!+I&#2�. *+(,�!�$�9VJCX9VJW�20���#�4$&*8



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� �!"#"$%��&'()*+,-./012/03+,4�0+�5/00�6.77,8�9:+�9/4�,+;3,/07<�/,</=>,+927<-7<�?@�A7,/0+.�B3=:�C1,>7�+,�A7D07;?7.�EF�/0GHIJKIL�MNOPKQR�2+=/07<�3,�B+=:7407.8�S79�T+.>U�V:327�5/009/4�1,/?27�0+�/007,<�0:7�=727?./03+,8�:7�34�9722�<747.W3,-�+X0:34�/14D3=3+14�.7=+-,303+,�/,<�97�=+12<�,+0�?7�;+.7�D.+1<YZ1<+4�0+�53=:7227�V/2D+278�9:+�D.747,07<�+,�/10:7,03=2/,-1/-7�27/.,3,-�/0�/�=+,X7.7,=7�3,�A@./=147�2/40�977>7,<YC.+;�0:7�S/D274�*A[�V7?D/-7\�],�]=0+?7.�E8�Ê_̀8�0:7S/D274�*7,0./2�A=:++2�[340.3=0�.7=73W7<�/�=/22�X.+;�6+W7.,+.*1+;+a4�+b=7�/,,+1,=3,-�0:/0�5.U�c+,�d70.14�ef3-:�A=:++2A=37,=7g�/,<�5.U�h</;�B+?34+,�ef3-:�A=:++2�5/0:7;/03=4g:/<�?77,�4727=07<�/4�S79�T+.>�A0/07�5/407.�i7/=:7.4UjHNkIlPmnlPOHNL�oHN�lNQ�pQlqr�i+�.7/<�6+W7.,+.�*1+;+a4D.744�.727/47�.7-/.<3,-�0:7�4727=03+,�+X�5/407.�i7/=:7.48D27/47�=23=>�stutv5/,@�0:/,>4�0+�S3=+27�6.77,8�5/00�6.77,�53=:7227�V/2D+278c/3;7�V7227.8�/,<�i744�5/.?27�X+.�27/<3,-�0:73.�=+227/-174�3,w.+X7443+,/2�[7W72+D;7,0�+,�_̂x_�<1.3,-�X+1.�d.7/>+10A7443+,4\V322�W4U�A>322\�A0./07-374�X+.�h<<.7443,-�A01<7,0�d7:/W3+.4/0�i37.�_�ei744�5/.?27gV322�W4U�A>322\�A0./07-374�X+.�h<<.7443,-�A01<7,0�d7:/W3+.4/0�i37.�E�eS3=+27�6.77,gi37.�_\�y,-/-7;7,0�A0./07-374�e53=:7227�V/2D+27g�i37.�_\�d7:/W3+./2�A0@274\�zA+�T+1�/.7�/�[.3W7.8�S+9�V:/0{|ec/3;7�V7227.�/,<�5/00�6.77,gA:+10�+10�0+�h2@�w+97.4�/,<�0:7�7,03.7�07/;�41DD+.03,-�0:7�.+22+10�+X�0:7�5+=>�[V}�/0�S/D274�f3-:�A=:++2�+,�5+,</@8�~x_�Yy�7;D2/.@�=+22/?+./03+,�?70977,�401<7,048�40/XX�/,<=+;;1,30@�/-7,=374�0+�D.+<1=7�3;D+.0/,0�;744/-3,-�X+.�+1.401<7,04U�Z1<+4�0+��/1./�C3,,/,�X+.�:7.�7XX+.04�0+�=++.<3,/07�930:V7-;/,4�w:/.;/=@�0+�+XX7.�C21�A:+04�<1.3,-�+1.�]D7,�f+147Y�/1./�:/4�/24+�=++.<3,/07<�930:�C++<�3,>�0+�D.+W3<7�/



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

�� �!"#"$%"%�&'()*)(+$#� ,+("',-"./0.1$'2"�!"%+#,%�0'�3.$("%�4567%%"%%1"',%8�&19$2,�0'�7& :;<=>?�@>ABC;=�DEFGG=�HI?BCIEB�GJJ>C?�;�K;CI>BL�GJ�;E;M>NIE�?>CKIE>?�BGN>>B�BF>�IA?BCOEBIGA;=�A>>M?�GJ�GOC�?BOM>AB?P�Q>�B;R>�<CIM>�IAN;SINITIAU�;K;I=;V=>�C>?GOCE>?�BG�V>?B�?O<<GCB�?BOM>AB?�IA�BF>IC�>JJGCB?BG�V>�?OEE>??JO=�IA�N>>BIAU�BF>�:>W�XGCR�DB;B>�Y>;CAIAU�DB;AM;CM?�;AMUC;MO;BIGA�C>ZOIC>N>AB?P�[F>�:>W�XGCR�DB;B>�H><;CBN>AB�GJ�\MOE;BIGA�N;AM;B>?�BF;B�?BOM>AB?�WFG�<>CJGCN�V>=GW�BF>�N>MI;A?E;=>�?EGC>�V>BW>>A�;�Y>K>=�]̂�<;CBI;==L�<CG_EI>AB�;AM�;�Y>K>=�̀̂<CG_EI>AB�GA�;�UC;M>�̀ab�\Yc�GCd;BF>N;BIE?�;??>??N>AB�e?>>�V>=GWf�V>�EGA?IM>C>M�JGC�cE;M>NIE�gAB>CK>ABIGA�D>CKIE>?�ecgDf�IAEGAhOAEBIGA�WIBF�NO=BI<=>�=GE;=�N>;?OC>?P�YGE;=�N>;?OC>?�BF;B�WI==�V>�J;EBGC>M�IABG�GOC�?BOM>AB?i>=IUIVI=IBL�JGC�cgD�WI==�IAE=OM>�=GE;=�OAIB�;AM�=>??GA�;??>??N>AB?j�?ONN;BIK>�;??>??N>AB?�;AM�_A;=;K>C;U>?�̂=>K>=?�GJ�EGOC?>�<CG_EI>AELP�c?�?OEFj�?BOM>AB?j�IAE=OMIAU�?BOM>AB?�WIBF�MI?;VI=IBI>?�;AM̂GC=INIB>M�\AU=I?F�<CG_EI>AELj�WI==�V>�M>?IUA;B>M�;AM�?EF>MO=>M�JGC�cgD�?>CKIE>?�WF>A�;�C>KI>W�GJNO=BI<=>�N>;?OC>?�IAMIE;B>?�BF;B�BF>�;MMIBIGA;=�?O<<GCB�I?�A>>M>MP�k<GA�C>KI>W�GJ�BF>�NO=BI<=>�N>;?OC>?�GOB=IA>M�;VGK>j�?GN>�;MMIBIGA;=�?BOM>AB?�IA�lC;M>?�m�n�b�F;K>V>>A�IM>ABI_>M�;?�>=IUIV=>�BG�C>E>IK>�cgD�;AM�WI==�V>�?EF>MO=>M�JGC�?O<<GCB�IA�\AU=I?F�QGCR?FG<�;AM�̂

W>>R>AM�o;ER<;ER�pCGUC;N�JGC�>=IUIV=>�?BOM>AB?P�[F;AR�LGOjY;OC;qDFGOB�GOB�BG�rGA�o>BCO?�JGC�E;CKIAU�GOB�;A�G<<GCBOAIBL�JGC:;<=>?�sIUF�DEFGG=�?BOM>AB?�BG�WGCR�WIBF�?BOM>AB?�JCGN�k�GJ�t;AM�DLC;EO?>�kAIK>C?IBL�BG�=>;CA�NGC>�;VGOB�dIBG?I?�;AMC>?>;CEF�=;VGC;BGCI>?�GA�D;BOCM;Lj�ûvwPd;AL�BF;AR?�BG�rG>==>�:IEFG=?GA�;AM�dGAIE;�x;?BA>C�JGCEG==;VGC;BIAU�;AM�EC>;BIAU�;A�G<<GCBOAIBL�JGC�:;<=>?�sD?BOM>AB?�BG�hGIA�BGU>BF>C�IA�;�BF>N>�GJ�xg:H:\DD�;AM�y:\qYGGRIAU�JGCW;CM�BG�BF>�WGCR�GJ�BFI?�E=OV�BFI?�L>;Cq



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� !"#�$��%&#�'(�)*+!&+�,�"+�"#!"�-./�0&�1+&02,+1�"��'��301+�&"41+,"&�50"#�&4''��"�0,�67-�!,1 !"#�50"#0,�!�&8!**�2��4'�&+""0,2�!,1�0&�1+*03+�+1�9:�;+�"0<+1=�"!*+,"+1�"+!;#+�&(

>?@�A?B@�CDE?@FGHI?DJ�KGLIDM�N?DOP@DQRSTUVWS�XYZ[W\�]W�YWU�]̂ �̂_Ỳ ZTa$+�!�+�<+*10,2�;�,;+�,&�9:�&"41+,"&=�b!;4*":=�&"!bb=�!,1�b!80*0+&!9�4"�"#+�'�+3!*+,;+��b�3!'0,2�9:��4��:�4"#(�c+5+��3!'+�1+&02,&d&4;#�!&�"#+�eff7�1+30;+g�#!3+�9++,��+08!2+1�"��*��%�*0%+�8!,:�"#+��;�88�,*:�4&+1=�h0,�'*!0,�&02#"h�0"+8&=�&4;#�!&�i!&#1�03+&=5�0"0,2�08'*+8+,"&=�!,1�+3+,�8!%+4'j�k#0&�8!�%+"0,2�#!&�&+�3+1"��9+�'��9*+8!"0;�b���'!�+,"&�!,1�b���"#�&+�0,�"#+�+14;!"0�,!*'��b+&&0�,!*�;�884,0":(k#+�/4�2+�,�l+,+�!*�m+'��"�&4���4,10,2�6no02!�+""+�f&+�-8�,2p�4"#�!,1�p�4,2�-14*"&�'�+b!;+�&"!"+&=�h6n;02!�+""+�4&+�!8�,2f(/(�:�4"#�!,1�:�4,2�!14*"&�0&�,�5�!�8!q���'49*0;�#+!*"#�;�,;+�,(�6n;02!�+""+�4&+�#!&�0,;�+!&+1;�,&01+�!9*:�0,��+;+,"�:+!�&=�2��50,2�!,�!&"�4,10,2�rsst�!8�,2�#02#�&;#��*�&"41+,"&�b��8usvv�"��usvw(�k#+&+�'��14;"&�!�+�,�5�"#+�8�&"�;�88�,*:�4&+1�b��8��b�"�9!;;��!8�,2�:�4"#0,�"#+�f,0"+1�/"!"+&=�&4�'!&&0,2�;�,3+,"0�,!*�"�9!;;��'��14;"&=�0,;*410,2�;02!�+""+&=�;02!�&=;#+50,2�"�9!;;�=�!,1�#��%!#&(� �&"�+n;02!�+""+&�;�,"!0,�,0;�"0,+=�5#0;#�;!,�;!4&+�!110;"0�,!,1�;!,�#!�8�"#+�1+3+*�'0,2�!1�*+&;+,"�9�!0,(.,� !�;#�usvx=�occ��!,�!,�!�"0;*+�9:�q�4�,!*0&"�-,!�.9!��!=�5#��!�24+&�"#+�4&!2+��b�e44*�+n;02!�+""+&�8!:�9+;�8+�"#+�yz+!*"#�'��9*+8��b�"#+�1+;!1+(y-,�-'�0*�usvx�occ�-�"0;*+�#+!1*0,+1=�h{!'0,2�,�5�!,�+'01+80;�!8�,2�f/�#02#�&;#��*+�&(h.,�"#+�-'�0*�usvx�c+5�p��%�k08+&�!�"0;*+�h.�o!,y"�/"�'=h�!,�!180,0&"�!"���&#!�+&�"#+�|b+!��"#!"�"#+1+30;+&�!�+�;�+!"0,2�!�,+5�2+,+�!"0�,��b�,0;�"0,+�!110;"&(h�cp/�7!5�'��#090"&�&8�%0,2��b�!,:�}�!**�"�9!;;�����"�9!;;��*0%+�'��14;"&�50"#0,�vss�b++"��b�"#++,"�!,;+&����+~0"&��b�!,:�'49*0;����'�03!"+�&;#��*&�d-(vsv�vn��}�/(�xw�n�g(�-&�&4;#=�"#+�c!'*+&o/�o�1+��b�o�,14;"�0,;*41+&�*!,24!2+�&'+;0<;�"��3!'0,2�$#0*+��,�&;#��*�'��'+�":�!,1�!"�&;#��*�b4,;"0�,&=�!�&"41+,"�&#�4*1�,�"��6,2!2+�0,�!,:�;�,14;""#!"�+,1!,2+�&�"#+�&!b+":=�8��!*&=�#+!*"#=�5+*b!�+��b��"#+�&=�0,;*410,2��'�&&+&&0,2=�;�,&480,2=&+**0,2=�!""+8'"0,2�"��&+**=�10&"�094"0,2����+~;#!,20,2�!*;�#�*0;�9+3+�!2+&=�"�9!;;�=�"�9!;;�'��14;"&�d[W��TU[W\������Y�[�V�S��Y����Z��UT�Sa�aT���Ya�à ��V�Vaa������YZ�����[\Y�VSSVahg���0**+2!*�&49&"!,;+&=����9+0,2�4,1+��"#+�0,i4+,;+��b�!,:��b�"#+&+(-**�&49&"!,;+��+*!"+1�o�1+��b�o�,14;"�30�*!"0�,&�":'0;!**:�0,;*41+�!�10&'�&0"0�,��b�&"41+,"�9+0,2�4"��b�/;#��*�/4&'+,1+1(-110"0�,!**:=�8�30,2�b��5!�1=�!**�&49&"!,;+��+*!"+1�o�1+��b�o�,14;"�30�*!"0�,&�50**�!*&��0,;*41+�!8��+�b��8!*�h"+!;#�;�8'�,+,"(h�/"41+,"&�50**�9+��+�40�+1�"��'!�"0;0'!"+�0,��,+��b�"#�++�!,"0&49&"!,;+�4&+�&+&&0�,&�v(��WS[�RT�aSYW�V��aV���VV���VWS��[W\�50"#�-*:�)�5+�&u(��WS[�RT�aSYW�V��aV���VaaY\[W\�50"#�7!4�!��0,,!,�(��WS[�RT�aSYW�V��aV����Z�[�[S��WaS�T�S[�W�50"#�7!4�!�)!&&!*!;�4!�,"!�0��o�4,":�z+!*"#�)�+3+,"0�,�614;!"���=�7!4�!�)!&&!*!;�4!=�0&�+~'*��0,2��+&�4�;+&�!9�4"�"#+#!�8b4*�+bb+;"&��b�3!'0,2�!,1�#�'+&�"��1+3+*�'�!�'*!,�0,�"#+�4';�80,2�5++%&�b���1+*03+�:��b+~'*0;0"�0,&"�4;"0�,�!9�4"�"#+�#+!*"#��0&%&�!&&�;0!"+1�50"#�3!'0,2�"�� /�&"41+,"&(�



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� !"�#$%&�$' �(''!%$)(%&�(*&$+�!,�+"--&+)(!'+�+",,!"'*('-�!",�$..,!$/#�)!�)&$/#('-�$'*�0!,1('-0()#�+)"*&')+�!'�)#(+�)!.(/2�345675�*!�,&$/#�!")�)!�+#$,&8

9:;<=:;>?@�ABCD

E<<?F�G?H�IJ=>@GK<LLM 0008*,"-$N"+&8-!%O#(+�('�!-,$.#(/�&P.Q!,&+�&R/(-$,&))&�"+&�$S!'-�)&&'+2�('/Q"*('-�"+$-&,$)&+�/!S.$,&*�0()#�/(-$,&))&�"+&2�.!)&')($Q��!,�&R/(-�"+&�)!�Q&$*�)!+S!1('-2�$'*�0#$)�)&&'+�+$ �(+�('�)#&(,�&R/(-2�$+�0&QQ�$+�$%&'"&+��!,�)&&'+T&P.!+",&�)!�&R/(-�$*%&,)(+('-8UGV>?@�>?�W=X::YFZ�[\M %(*&!8&*0&&18!,-O#&�"+&�!��)#&+&�&R/(-$,&))&+�Q(1&�)#&�.!."Q$,�]""Q�N,$'*�(+�+.(1('-�$S!'- !")#2�N")�.$,&')+�!�)&'�$,&'̂)�&%&'�+",&�0#$)�)#& �$,&�$'*�S$' �)&&'+S(+)$1&'Q �N&Q(&%&�)#&,&�$,&�'!�+&,(!"+�#&$Q)#�,(+1+8�_]"Q �̀a2�bc̀ad



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

�� !"� #$%�&'()*+,-�./�*.012.0+34�5�6789:�;<=�><�?8@ABC�DE�E>=FB9>�G<=9HIA�89F�8FJIC<KL�MIAA�N=K@7;LO<K�8AA�<O�>7BIK�@A899I9P�QB7I9F�>7B�CHB9BC�><�<KP89IRB�89F�@K<F=HB<=K�D<SBH<SI9P�BJB9>C�>7IC�TBB:U�VB@�W8AA;�<9�XYZ[�T8C�8�QA8C>\6789:�;<=�><�MIAA�N=K@7;L�O<K�8AA�<O�7IC�B9BKP;�89F�B9>7=CI8CSC=KK<=9FI9P�>7B�D<SBH<SI9P�]89HB�<9�XYZZ\�̂9HB�8P8I9L�>7ICBJB9>�T8C�89�I9HKBFIQAB�7I>U�_ �̀abc�def�gh�gij�klic̀ml�ngcopbqqjgrs�tte�klic̀mlku�bll̀mcs�v>�T8C�8�T<9FBKO=A�BJB9I9P�<O�F89HI9PL�A8=P7>BKL�OKIB9FC�89F�O=9O<K�I9HKBFIQAB�C>=FB9>C\G<9PK8>=A8>I<9C�><�<=K�D<SBH<SI9P�G<=K>w�xKIC>I9B�yBAFBKL�z=:8C�VBKK;L�{A898�G8K>BK�89F�];A89NHN=AAB9\G<9PK8>=A8>I<9C�><�<=K�M<;C�|{WEv6}L�yIKAC�|{WEv6}L�89F�yIKAC�~|�C<HHBK�>B8SC�O<K�>8:I9P�>7BTI9�F=KI9P�>7B�D<SBH<SI9P�{>7AB>IH�G<S@B>I>I<9CUE7<=>�<=>�><�G78F�D=9>�O<K�<KP89IRI9P�>7B�>KIQ=>B�><�8AA�<O�E�?v̂W�8>7AB>BC�F=KI9P�>7BD<SBH<SI9P�{>7AB>IH�BJB9>CU

���#�#���!!��������������!���67IC�;B8KL�E>=FB9>�G<=9HIA�T8C�B�HI>BF�><�HKB8>B�8�E@IKI>��BB:�>78>7IP7AIP7>BF�8�CB9CB�<O�QBA<9PI9P�TI>7I9�<=K�CH7<<AU�6<�F<�C<L�TBHKB8>BF�9BT�8H>IJI>IBC�89F�H<S@B>I>I<9C�><�B9H<=K8PB�@8K>IHI@8>I<9OK<S�8AA�C>=FB9>C�89F�C>8OO�SBSQBKCU��B�C>8K>BF�Q;�78JI9P�>7B�]KBCC�]8;C��T7BKB�C>=FB9>C�89F�C>8OO�FKBCCBF�><��>�>7B�>7BSB�<OB8H7�F8;U�67B9�TB�8FFBF�9BT�8H>IJI>IBC�><�>7B�VB@�W8AA;L�C=H7�8CD=9PK;�D=9PK;�DI@@<C�89F�9BT�C>8OO�>B8SC�I9�B8H7�8H>IJI>IBCUĴBK8AAL�I>�T8C�8S8RI9P�><�CBB�>7B�C>=FB9>�89F�C>8OO�B9>7=CI8CS�89FFKIJB�T7B9�I>�H8SB�F<T9�><�TI99I9P�>7B�H<S@B>I>I<9�89FB9H<=K8PI9P�CH7<<A�C@IKI>L��E>=FB9>�G<=9HIA�VKBCIFB9>L�z=:8C�VBKK;



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

��� �!�"##$�%&!�'�!�#()*+,-./0�12345�*+67�89:0�;5<<�=�335<<�.>�?+@�A@.-BC�1�=�3DEFBC-./0�123;5�G+H+@�9.@�8./ A@.-B�3D=�IH.67A@.-B�33=�@B-A@.-B�3<�=�IHFBA@.-B�1�=�JKLMBA@.-B�;�=�N@./A@.-B�4�=�OF@OHB9B-,BC-./0�12315�P>B@L6.�8./EKF@C-./0�12D<5�E+F@LCM�8./Q@L-./0�12D35�A@BB,�.,-�9KLMB�8./RST#&ST�UV�W #X$YX(!)Z.MF@-./0�12DD5�;5<<�[\.OHBC�]Z�G.?BQBB5�̂D_<<�OB@�OB@C+,%!̀a#!�&�bSU!#(!()Z.MF@-./0�12DD5�3D5<<�AL@HC�cd�.,-�d.@CLM/�Z+66B@�eC�9.MB@H++�[\.OHBC�G+>>F,LM/�O.@7Z.MF@-./0�12DD5�D5f<�g+/C�cd�Z+66B@�eC�A.,.,-.�[\.OHBC�G+>>F,LM/�h.@7Z.MF@-./0�12DD5�D5f<�g+/C�d�Z+66B@�eC�9.MB@H++�[\.OHBC�G+>>F,LM/�h.@7RST#&ST�UV�iXU&#)Z.MF@-./0�12DD5�;5<<�=�335<<�h*�[\.OHBC�]LNK�Z6K++H



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� ����

�� !"#$!%&��"�'�()�*'%(!�#!�+#,-% �.�)/�0$/11-2�3456457
81$9��:;4�� !"#$!%&��"�'�()�*'%(!�<81(&#=2�0%,!%>?%"�562�@A57�B�>%C�7<55#>DEF�GHIJFK�LFMNOHJ�PQERRJ�STKNOTQN�UHQTJTNHNFV�H�WRQX�SYZ[STKNOHQNFVSOT\TM]�F\FMN�RM�NEF�̂ROMTM]�RU�PFINF̂ _FO�̀ab�cd̀ef�DEF�F\FMN�UFHNgOFVH�KNH]FV�NhR�QHO�HQQTVFMN�hTNE�GHIJFK�KNgVFMNK�HQNTM]�HK�\TQNT̂Kf�iRQHJjOF�HMV�Ĥ _gJHMQF�QOFhK�HK�hFJJ�HK�IRJTQF�QRM\FO]FV�RM�NEF�KQFMF�NR�EFJI�NEF�TMkgOFV�HMV�gMOH\FJ�NEFQHgKF�RU�NETK�MFFVJFKK�HQQTVFMNf���lT]E�KQERRJ�KNgVFMNK�HJKR�HNNFMVFV�HM�HKKF̂ _Jm�HT̂FV�HN�OHTKTM]�HhHOFMFKK�H_RgN�NEFQRMKFngFMQFK�RU�gMVFOH]F�VOTMXTM]b�T̂IHTOFV�VOT\TM]b�VTKNOHQNFV�VOT\TM]b�HMV�RNEFO�OTKXm�_FEH\TROKfPIFHXFOK�HVVOFKKFV�_RNE�JF]HJ�HMV�̂ROHJ�TKKgFK�JTMXFV�NR�NEFKF�TKKgFK�hETJF�IOR\TVTM]�FKKFMNTHJXMRhJFV]F�RU�GoP�JHhKf�DEF�]RHJ�RU�NETK�WRQX�SYZ[STKNOHQNFV�SOT\TM]�F\FMN�hHK�NR�OFVgQF�TMQTVFMNKRU�gMVFOH]F�VOTMXTM]�HMV�IOR\TVF�RgO�mRgNE�NEF�NRRJK�NEFm�MFFV�NR�̂HXF�]RRV�JTUF�VFQTKTRMK�HMV_FQR̂ F�OFKIRMKT_JF�̂F̂ _FOK�RU�KRQTFNmf�DEF�jMHJ�IEHKF�RU�NETK�F\FMN�TM\RJ\FV�URgO�KNHNTRMKf�PNgVFMNK�EFHOV�UOR̂ �H�]gFKN�KIFHXFOb�\TKTNFV�hTNE\FMVROKb�FM]H]FV�TM�OFpFQNT\F�VTKQgKKTRMK�hTNE�KNHUUb�HMV�IJFV]FV�NEFTO�KHUFNmf



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

��� !"##$%� &�'(&�)*+$,-
./012�3245�6789

./012�3245�0�:;5<�=*�#�*�#�#*�>((�*?�#=$�-#�%$@#-�>@%�-#>??�!$! $,-�+=*�+$(A*!$%#=$�A,*+%-�>@%�,$B,$-$@#$%�C>B($-�D��A(� -�>@%�>#=($#"A-�%�,"@EF,>B$G$-#�#="-�&$>,H�'�@�! $,�*?�C>B($-�I�J�A(� -�B>,#"A"B>#$%�#="-&$>,KI(>--�*?�LMNOD��I=*,�-�#$$(�)>@�P>@%P>-$ >((�B>@"-=�I(� Q* *#"A-�R�S/205T�S/012�U0V�;WX +++Y!B@@*+YA*!Z=$�?�@�A*@#"@�$-���@%>&�%�,"@E�#=$�C>B($-�F,>B$�G$-#"[>(



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

��� �!"#�$#%&��'�(#)!"#��*+)�&,-./�012�34./5�46�7589.:;4<=�>-9-<:?@=�:A-�/-B8?:B�6/4C�:A-�0D2�E/.5-B�FGH�7IJ=�K.:A=�.<5�29;-<9--L.CB�M-/-�/-?-.B-5N�JB�.�/-B8?:=�?-::-/B�A.O-�P--<�C.;?-5�A4C-�:46.C;?;-B�BA./;<E�:A-;/�9A;?5QB�B94/-B�.<5�48/�B:.66�A.B�P--<�/-.BB-BB;<E:A-�<--5B�46�48/�B:85-<:B�R./:;.??@�P.B-5�4<�:A;B�5.:.N�S8/�B9A44?5;B:/;9:�94<:;<8-B�:4�P-�R/4.9:;O-�P@�-<B8/;<E�:A.:�B:85-<:B�MA4�<--5-L:/.�.BB;B:.<9-�/-9-;O-�:A;B�:A/48EA�48/�C8?:;G:;-/-5�B@B:-C�46�B8RR4/:BN�T<�:A-�M--UB�.A-.5=�M-�M;??P-�94CR;?;<E�.<5�/-R4/:;<E�:A-�VWXYGVWXH�2:.66�7O.?8.:;4<�,.:.�.B�M-??�.B�A.O;<E�B:.66�O-/;6@�:A-;/-?-9:/4<;9�R-/B4<<-?�C.B:-/�Z?-�;<�:A-�[-.9A-/�J99-BB�.<5�J8:A4/;\.:;4<�B@B:-CN�]8B:�.B�M-�B8RR4/:�:A-�.9.5-C;9�<--5B�46�B:85-<:B=�M-�./-�.?B4�M4/U;<E�4<�A-?R;<E�B:85-<:B�/-.9AB899-BB�B49;.??@�.<5�-C4:;4<.??@N�S<-�-L.CR?-�46�:A;B�;B�48/�;<:-E/.:;4<�46�8:;?;\;<E�/-B:4/.:;O-94<6-/-<9-B�M;:A�B:85-<:B�MA4�./-�;<�.�R4M-/�B:/8EE?-�4/�94<̂;9:�9@9?-�M;:A�.�R--/N�JB�.58?:B=�M-/-.?;\-�:A-�B:/-<E:A�;<�5;66-/;<E�O;-MB�.<5�A4M�94??.P4/.:;4<�;B�P-B:N�S8/�@48:A�<--5�:4�.?B48<5-/B:.<5�A4M�:4�.RR/-9;.:-�5;66-/-<9-B�.<5�/-B4?O-�94<̂;9:N�18//-<:?@=�4<-�46�:A-�?./E-B:�B:/8EE?-B�@48:A�./-�6.9;<E�.9/4BB�JC-/;9.�.<5�;<�0.R?-B=�;B�:A-�O.R;<E-R;5-C;9�:A.:�;B�;CR.9:;<E�B4�C.<@�B:85-<:B�:A-B-�5.@BN�J:�0.R?-B=�M-�./-�64/:8<.:-�:4�A.O-�.94A-B;O-�:-.C�:4�B8RR4/:�48/�B:85-<:B�94CR/;B-5�46�48/�29A44?�>-B48/9-�S_9-/G,-R8:@�].8B=�̀-.?:A[-.9A-/GJ?@B4<�a4M-/B=�29A44?�08/B-GI.8/.�b;<<.<=�.<5�a/-O-<:;4<�144/5;<.:4/GI.8/.�a.BB.?.9c8.NJB�M-�94<:;<8-�:4�-589.:-�48/�:--<B�4<�:A-�A./C68?�-66-9:B�46�O.R;<E=�M-�./-�.?B4�.BU;<E�R./-<:B�:4/-.9A�48:�:4�8B�;6�:A-@�./-�;<�<--5�46�48/�.BB;B:.<9-�:4�A-?R�:A-;/�9A;?5/-<N�2;<9-/-?@=-̀.:A-/�d.@�1?./U]/e2/�̀;EA�JBB;B:.<:�a/;<9;R.?e0.R?-B�,;B:/;9:�,.:.�144/5;<.:4/



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

��� !"�#$�%&'(�()*+,-./�01�2345-56�7/108-.3019:;<=/�>-9.�?//@�0A�B/+./C4/5�-1,�D59.�?//@9�0A�EF.04/5�=-8/�4//1>3@/�G=539.C-9�31�.=/�>345-56H�B>0?>6I�4J.�9J5/>6�.=/�>345-56�=-9�4//15/F/3831K�3.9�1/?�AJ513.J5/H�<=/5/�39�-�.5-19A05C-.301�31�.=/�-5/-?3.=�/8/56�,/>38/56L�M.�.=39�+031.I�C-16�0A�.=/�1/?�F=-359�=-8/-5538/,I�?=3F=�31F>J,/�=3K=�F=-359�A05�0J5�1/?�=3K=�.0+�.-4>/9I�-9?/>>�-9�-�8-53/.6�0A�;50F@/5;�F=-359I�-1,�>0?�50F@/5�F=-359�A05�N/O34>/9/-.31K�0+.3019H�P6�C3,QEF.04/5�C05/�.-4>/9�-1,�.=/�9/F.301->IF0CA6�9/-.31K�9=0J>,�-5538/�.0�F0C+>/./�.=/�5/108-.301�+50R/F.HS-16�9.J,/1.9�-5/�/OF3./,�-40J.�.=/�1/?�9/-.31K�-1,�0A./1F0CC/1.�=0?�CJF=�.=/6�>3@/�.=/�1/?�9+-F/H�T.�?3>>�4/�?01,/5AJ>=-8/�->>�.=/�1/?�AJ513.J5/�31�+>-F/L; UBJ4C3../,�P6�G0>>//1�P/.5J9
VWXY'!(�Z�XX !�Y[�X\!�ZYY]"̂_̀ab�C-5@9�.=/�/>/8/1.=�6/-5�.=-.�.=/�cB�2345-56�=-9�4//1�=09.31K.=/�P-..>/�0A�.=/�P00@9H�*9J->>6I�.=/�>345-56�=0>,9�.=5//�F0C+/.3.3019.=50JK=0J.�.=/�6/-5H�B.J,/1.9�-5/�,383,/,�31.0�./-C9�0A�93OI�?3.=/-F=�9.J,/1.�4/31K�-1�;/O+/5.;�01�01/�400@H�<0�?31I�./-C9�CJ9.-19?/5�.=/�C09.�.5383-�dJ/9.3019�-40J.�.=/35�400@9�F055/F.>6HB.J,/1.9�F0C+/./�A05�+53e/9I�9JF=�-9�G-1-1,-3KJ-�S083/�<=/-./5.3F@/.9�05�MC-e01�K3A.�F-5,9H�f=3>/�+-5.3F3+-.31KI�9.J,/1.9�/1R06



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

��� �!"#�$#%&!"�'()#*+,-./01-�2.11�34�5664748�59�:/;5347�<<�.9�;+4�=>7-4?-�:@/4A�B/>7749;�C+,-./01�D2.;+.9�;+4�10-;�<E�F59;+-G�.-�74H>.748�657�011-;>849;-�49;47.9I�J;+K�L;+K<<;+�I7084K�011�942�-;>849;-K�;+5-4M5.9.9I�0�-C57;�098�;+5-4�209;.9I�0�257N�C47F.;A�*140-4�4F0.1�F4K1O9909EP90C14-/-8A57I�57�/011�QJRSJL<R�;5�74-47T4�0�-C5;A�U+.-2.11�34�;+4�591,�;.F4�C+,-./01-�2.11�34�5664748�346574�;+4�-;07;�56�;+4V.9;47�WC57;�W40-59AX4;�,5>7�YZ[�\0//.94]�V4IF09-�*+07F0/.-;-�2.11�34�59S-.;4C75T.8.9I�̂>�-+5;-�8>7.9I�;+4�_14F49;07,�:C49�̀5>-4�59�U+>7-80,K�:/;5347�<<�675F�a]QbSJQbA*140-4�37.9I�,5>7�c9->709/4�d078A�

efgf�%hi�j##��k#&%!l�hm"ln�gol&&�pql&ilhrstqh)"�pqh)"s�u��qnm�%!�v%n&#m�$lr"g)"��&w4-;0>70;4>7K�X>,�Y.47.K�-;0;48�;+0;�xd55N.9I�.-�011�035>;�C45C14A�Y558�.-F0,34�;+4�591,�>9.T47-01�;+.9I�;+0;�74011,�+0-�;+4�C5247�;5�37.9I4T47,594�;5I4;+47A�=5�F0;;47�2+0;�/>1;>74K�4T47,2+474�075>98�;+425718K�C45C14�I4;�;5I4;+47�;5�40;Ay�U+4�zBWB�Z>9/+�{>9/+�20-�/740;48;5�C75T.84�0�-064�-C0/4�657�-;>849;-�.9�X7084-�J�098�|�;5�85�M>-;�;+0;S/5F4�;5I4;+47A�U+4�O7-;�75>98�56�F44;.9I-�34I09�W4C;4F347�<J�098942�657�;+.-�-/+551�,407K�40/+�I75>C�/59;0.9-�0�F.};>74�56�40/+�I7084K�75>I+1,�L�C47�1>9/+A�Z>9/+{>9/+�34I09�2.;+�;+4�I501-�657�;+4�,407~�.9/1>8.9I�F44;.9I�<SE}�C47�F59;+�2.;+�;+4�-0F4�-;>849;-�.9;+4�+5C4�56�34/5F.9I�0�F.8814�-/+551�;40FA�Y57�4}0FC14K�-5�607�40/+�1>9/+�+0-�-;07;48�2.;+�0�W;759I�.8-�->7T4,�74I078.9I�+401;+,�4F5;.5901�/+5./4-A�J;+�I70847-�098�|;+�I70847-�0;4�098�/5FC14;48�;+.--4C070;41,A�{,�;+4�498K�;+4,�2474�011�;01N.9I�;5�40/+�5;+47A�U+474�.-�->//4--�+474�017408,�098�-;>849;-074�85.9I�.9/748.314�-5/.01�4F5;.5901�257N�2.;+5>;�4T49�7401.�.9I�.;A�U+4,�074�0/N952148I.9I�40/+

-90/N-�098�-5F4�6>9�/5FC4;.;.59A�:>7�O7-;�75>98�657�;+4�,407K34I.9-�:/;5347�<J;+A



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� !"#�$%&'(%�')*�!%+ ��� !"#�,�)(')*-!$!)�'.�'��'/�%,�0��1'//')*�� !�+%.!�!"'%234�5+��,!"�67�8'&&�1%"9� !�:"/���;+'%&�&!//�)�."�1�� !�5&8!0/�<0&&=')*�>"!$!)�'�)�>"�*"%1?�<0'&(')*�%�>�/'�'$!�@&'1%�!4AB0,1'��!(�,=�C�!&&!�D'+ �&/�)

EFG�EHIIJK�LFFM�NOPQR�SHTF�HU�VJWXYJWXKFZ[�\X]̂F_�̀XWa�bXFFcdefe�ghijk�clmnopqr�stuvwmx�yzk�{mpx�|mo�gpq}~��mo�m�uv�wm�gxl���xmm���}j����u�m�|mo�|�wwv��{mm����mo�m���xmtm��m�p�xmo�x�wwv��{mo�mnopqr�stuvwmx�y�k��m��s���gxl�n�}�@�1!�("!//!(�')�%�%8%''%)�� !1!444� ')9�&!'/�%)(���8!"!(�/ '"�/���"'/�,%)(/��%//!(�0��(0"')*�&0)+ !/4c�lxnopqr�stuvwmx�y�k�~��flnupt�m�ivl��vu�uv��nm�gxl�n���-�!%"�%�10/�%+ !/4��0/�%+ !/�8'&&,!��%//!(��0��8'� �� !������0'��+�)�!/��(0"')*�&0)+ 4�x�opqr�stuvwmx�y�k�dm���h��x�m�o�jpq��v�}��8'))')*� %=gh��i�c|�¡�hB�0(!)�/�8'&&� %$!�� !�����"�0)'�=����"!/��)(����(%'&=��"'$'%��0!/�'�)/4��!/��)/!/�/!"$!�%/!)�"'!/����8')�(%'&=��"'�!/4is�|���c�|e��n�¢eir�jchi�g|�£��|ee�¤��¥¦%0"%�>%//%&%�0%�8'&&� %$!�� !��!(��',,�)��!!9��0'��%$%'&%,&!�.�"�/�0(!)�/�(0"')*�¦0)+ �§�%)(¦0)+ �<4�>%"�'+'�%)�/� %$!�� !�����"�0)'�=����8')��"'�!/4

©̈FFG�ªJWKUF_HKa� '/�=!%"��"/4�«%/�)!"�'/��"'%&')*#�8'� �� !�/0���"���.�*"%(!-&!$!&�!%+ !"/�%)(�%(1')'/�"%�'�)#�%�)!8�!)(!%$�"�.�"�¬� �-�� �*"%(!"/2/�!!(�+�0)/!&')*���B !�$'/'�/�+&%//"��1/��)�(%=/�8 !"!�� !�.�+0/�'/�')(!�!)(!)�8�"9-+�1�&!�'�)����/!!�/�0(!)�/#�1!!�')*�8'� �� !1��)!�,=��)!�')%�)!%",=�!1��=�"��1#�1!!�')*�8'� �%/�1%)=�/�0(!)�/�%/�%,&!����')�%�!"'�(4�� '/�*'$!/� !"��'1!����/!!�%&&��.� !"�/�0(!)�/�%)(�/0���"�� !'"�%+%(!1'+�%)(�/�+'%&-!1��'�)%&�*"�8� 4�B��.%"#�� !��"�+!//� %/,!!)�$!"=�8!&&�"!+!'$!(#�8'� �/�0(!)�/��"!/!)�')*�%/�+�1.�"�%,&!+ %��')*�')�� '/�1%))!"�%)(�%&"!%(=�%/9')*�8 !)�/ !®/�"!�0")')*���� !�"��14�B�0(!)�/�%"!�%,&!�����"�,&!1�/�&$!#�"!/�&$!��!!"�+�)�'+�/�,!.�"!� !=�!/+%&%�!#�%/9��"!//')*��0!/�'�)/#�"!$'!8�*"%(!/#��"�"!�0!/��� %�/ !�%($�+%�!��)�� !'"�,! %&.�̄'4!42�+%&&�� !'"��%"!)�#�%/9�� !'"��!%+ !".�"�.!!(,%+9#�%//'/��')�0)&�+9')*�� !'"�B+ ��&���&#�!�+434�°��%&/�)�"1%&'�!/�+�0)/!&')*#�!(0+%�!/�/�0(!)�/��)� �8�B+ ��&@�0)/!&�"/�%)(��� !"�/0���"�/�&'9!�§(1')'/�"%��"/#�B0���"��B�%..#D0"/!/#�%)(�B+ ��&�>/=+ �&�*'/�/�%"!�%&&�/�0"+!/��.�/0���"�#�%)(�"�1��!/�/!&.-%($�+%+=� AB0,1'��!(�,=���)'+%�«%/�)!"

±]©_FU�²̈ �±²̈ �²JU³U�bJJG�̀XĤF� !�D%�'�)%&���)�"�B�+'!�=�8'&&�,!�"0))')*�%�́��(� "'$!�')�,�� �� !!&!1!)�%"=�%)(� '* �/+ ��&�,0'&(')*/#�� !�8!!9��.�D�$!1,!"�6µ� -D�$!1,!"�67� 4�°�!1/�+�&&!+�!(�8'&&�,!�(�)%�!(����� !�D%�&!/�5�!)@0�,�%"(#�� !���)(%=�,!.�"!�� %)9/*'$')*4�� '/�'/�%�9!=��'1!��.=!%"�.�"�.�&9/����(�)%�!�'�!1/����� !�5�!)�@0�,�%"(4�°)�� !��%/�#�� !!&!1!)�%"=�/+ ��&� %/�.%"�/0"�%//!(�� !� '* �/+ ��&�')�� !�)01,!"�.�'�!1/�(�)%�!(4��!�8�0&(�&'9!����/!!�%�,!��!"�/ �8')*�,=� '* /+ ��&�/�0(!)�/�� '/�=!%"4�D�B�'/�+0""!)�&=�8�"9')*��)�%)�')+!)�'$!���')+"!%/!�� !�)01,!"��.�(�)%�'�)/�%��� !� '* �/+ ��&�&!$!&4�°.�=�0



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� �!""#$%�&$'%()�*#+,(-�*+.�/01�233456�75869:�;4<=9>�;<?0@�A�BCDEC�FGHIJK�LMAL�NGOCJ�FAP�IHP@�QGR@�GISAOC�GP�TMHIJUAV@�WGXKYZKI�[[PU\�]KR̂JLIAL̂GP�̂J�UAV�GN�GPOV�APUZKR̂PJ�AL�_�AY\�TMK�LIGL�JLAILJ�AL�_̀Ba�AY\�bIGFKKUJ�NIGY�LM̂JNHPUIÂJKI�ŜOO�ZKPKcL�LMIKK�GIRAP̂dAL̂GPJ@�LMK�WAeOKJ�feKP�gHeZGAIU@LMK�gGYYHP̂LV�bAIC�hGHPUAL̂GP@�APU�LM̂J�VKAI@�LMK�WAeOKJ�iGJeKAFKiGHJK\�ĵYL̂KU�KÛL̂GP�LkJM̂ILJ�ZV�gMÎJ�lZIAMAY�mFGJL�noap\�lLLKPL̂GPqLHUKPLJr�TMKIK�̂J�A�qeGILJ�TKAY�gMAOOKPRK�mJKK�LMK�sVKI�NGI�YGIKUKLÂOJp\�fPK�GN�GHI�Wgq�LKAYJ�FAP�ŜP�A�LKAY�êddA�eAILV\�hGI�YGIKP̂NGIYAL̂GP�AZGHL�LMK�LIGL@�JKKMLLeJ̀DDSSS\NAFKZGGC\FGYDWAeOKJTHICKVTIGLD�GI�LMK�ALLAFMKU�sVKI\

tutvwt&xy�zw{�|{utz�}v~����� (�#%(��.+�����������;����fP��GPUAV@�fFLGZKI�[�@�[ao_@�LMK�KPL̂IK�WAeOKJ�gKPLIAO�qFMGGO�̂JLÎFL�ŜOO�eIAFL̂FK�AP��YKIRKPFV��G�iGYK��ÎOO\lOO�JLHUKPLJ�m�ko[p�ŜOO�ÛJYĴJ�NIGY�FOAJJKJ�LG�UKĴRPALKU�AIKAJ�̂PLMK��OKYKPLAIV�qFMGGO��VYPAĴHY�APU�gANK�eÎGI�LG�ÛJYĴJAO\266�:04�930:���66��9���:��::9���<?��019��<�66�53���<?��:�1??6�588<?���5096>������3409:�95<6�9<0153�0>8��56\

SGHOU�ÔCK�LG�YACK�A�UGPAL̂GP@�FGPLAFL��IJ\��KLIHJ�̂P�LMK�M̂RMJFMGGO�ÔZIAIV�mFZKLIHJ�PAeOKJFJU\GIRp\

�.�$%�!+� )��!&}��#¡)� �#�(�*($� (+�$��&$'%()�x�}�AIVO�lZIAMAY�JHZJL̂LHLKU�NGI�A�¢LM�RIAUK�LKAFMKI�GP�oaDE\�lL�LMK�KPU�GN�FOAJJ@��I\�lZIAMAY�RAXK�HJA�LGHI�GN�M̂J�AIL�K£M̂ẐL�̂P�LMK�ALÎHY\�iK�UKJFÎZKU�JGYK�GN�LMK�YALKÎAOJ@�eIGFKJJ@�APU�̂UKAJ�ZKM̂PULMK�AIL\�¤L�SAJ�IKAOOV�AP�AYAd̂PR�GeeGILHP̂LV�NGI�GHI�JLHUKPLJ\�¤�SAJ�XKIV�̂YeIKJJKU�ŜLM�LMK�¥HKJL̂GPJLMK�JLHUKPLJ�AJCKU�APU�MGS�JKÎGHJOV�LMKV�LGGC�LMK�GeeGILHP̂LV\ ¦qHZYL̂LKU�ZV�gALMV�TMAVKI



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� �!" #$%&'()" *+"$&�!,"$$+$(��$�!+-.+$(�)!�"�-/+,*�0 �1�&-/��,2�3#�"&.�%/"%�4�)�!,"$�%��!+-.4�) �-/+,*�)!�0 �1�%/#�5+(/�6-/��,�$��#" ,+# �%/"$�7879�!:1:�;� �"&�&��$�"&�%/#�<)&#&�/"=#�#>+%#*%/#�,��!?:6"0#%4�@#"1�1#1<# &�3+,,�"&&+&%�3+%/�&)!# =+&+�$�"$*�*+&1+&&",��$�%/+&�*"%#:ABCDEC�FGHC�HIDH�HICJC�KLBB�MC�FG�BDHC�MNECE�GF�OGFPDQR�STHGMCJ�UVW��XYZ[\]�DFP�̂SOO_̀ âY\aS̀b#�)$*# &%"$*�%/"%�%/#�+11#*+"%#� #"-%+�$��0�&%)*#$%&�*) +$(�"$�#1# (#$-4�+&�%��)&#�%/#+ �-#,,!/�$#&�%��-",,�!" #$%&�� ��%/# �0 +#$*&:�ABCDEC�MC�DPcLECP�HIDH�EHNPCFHE�DFP�EHDdd�DJC�PLJCTHCPFGH�HG�NEC�HICLJ�TCBB�eIGFCE�dGJ�DFQ�JCDEGF�PNJLFf�DFQ�eJDTHLTC�PJLBBW6%)*#$%&�1)&%�",&�� #1"+$�g)+#%�*) +$(�%/+&�! "-%+-#�* +,,�%��#$&) #�%/"%�6"0#%4�@#"1�� h1# (#$-4�i#&!�$&#�@#"1�1#1<# &�1"4�-�11)$+-"%#�*+ #-%+�$&:��6%)*#$%�&"0#%4�+&�!" "1�)$%�"$*�"�! +� +%4�"%�j"!,#&�5+(/�6-/��,:�@/+&�k��5�1#�l +,,�+&��$#�0"-#%��0�) �#1# (#$-4�! #!" #*$#&&�!,"$�"$*�3#�"!! #-+"%#�4�) �&)!!� %�"$*�-��!# "%+�$:�m,#"&#�-�$%"-%)&�3+%/�"$4�g)#&%+�$&�� �-�$-# $&�"<�)%�%/+&�+$0� 1"%+�$:nopqrpstu�vqwxxy[zCJfCFTQ�{JLBBE|&�4�)�1"4�<#�"3" #2�j#3�}� .�6%"%#�1"$*"%#&�%/"%�",,&-/��,&�-�$*)-%�#1# (#$-4�#="-)"%+�$�"$*�,�-.*�3$�* +,,&#"-/�4#" :�@/#&#�#># -+&#&�"00� *�)&�%/#�+1!� %"$%��!!� %)$+%4%��! "-%+-#��) �#1# (#$-4� #&!�$&#�! �-#*) #&:�@3#,=#�#1# (#$-4�* +,,&�1)&%�<#�-�$*)-%#*�#"-/�&-/��,�4#" 20�) ��0�3/+-/�1)&%�<#�,�-.~*�3$�* +,,&2�"$*�#+(/%�" #� #g)+ #*%��<#�#="-)"%+�$�* +,,&:�h+(/%��0�%/#� #g)+ #*�%3#,=#�* +,,&�1)&%�<#�-�1!,#%#*�+$�%/#�� &%/",0��0�%/#�&-/��,�4#" 2�<4�l#-#1<# ���:�'��#1# (#$-4�#="-)"%+�$�* +,,&�/"=#�<##$�-�$*)-%#*�"%�%/#5+(/�6-/��,�%��*"%#:@3��,�-.*�3$�* +,,&�/"=#�<##$�-�$*)-%#*�%/)&�0" :�$#��5�,*�+$�m,"-#��3+%/�-"$+$#�&3##!�3"&�-�$*)-%#*��$�9'�'��:��qps���p�t�pq���s�pqpstpy�������xpy�wr���t���x�������������� ¡¢£�¤�¥��¦§̈©ª«¬���®�¤̈¦� ¡�¥��̄�°±�²¥�³³¥� �¬́³��� µ¶·®��̧�¹·®º»¼̧·�m" #$%�@#"-/# �½�$0# #$-#&�" #�&-/#*),#*�0� �@/) &*"42���'��+$�%/#�#=#$+$(�"$*�� +*"42���'7�+$�%/#"0%# $��$�;/",0�*"4�0� �&%)*#$%&?:
k#%�l+ #-%+�$&

�����y¾����xpy���¿p�À 333:1!$$�3:-�1



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� !"��#�$"%& '(�)�*++'(),-.//�01234�15�647829:1;�<==9:;>?�23=�@=/4�:;�9@=�A2B/=?�C:>@�D8@11/�825=2;4�E=>:;�29�FGHIBJ�:;�/:=7�15�KGII�L=55=89:M=�NOPNQR�D=B9=JE=3�S�2;4�PN�T891E=3�H�2;4�PK�A1M=JE=3�K�2;4�UV�W=8=JE=3�PU�X2;723Y�N�2;4�UH�Z=E3723Y�F�<238@�F�2;4�UI�.B3:/�PI�<2Y�P�2;4�UP�X7;=�S�2;4�PN�
[*\]̂ _̀ a_�b̀ _$cd�e!�f�'g+�h�%)-+i(),b+j !'f+)'ATk6DGPR�lD.k�1;�PIOPIUR�mB81J:;>�93:B�91�./53=4�D929=�513�D1B@1J13=?�2;4�2�5=n�?=;:13?R��HR�k@3==�?=;:13?�23=�@=24=4�91�./53=4�m;:M=3?:9Y�513�2�?8@1/23?@:B81JB=9:9:1;R�oR�Po�/182/�81//=>=?�B239:8:B29=4�:;�p18@=?9=3�q23==3�Z2:3�/2?9�J1;9@r2;4�@2M=�@24�?=M=32/�19@=3?�M:?:9�?:;8=�9@=�Y=23�E=>2;�L2;4�?=M=32/J13=�91�81J=QR�PIOPIG�lD.k�513�PI9@�2;4�PP9@�>324=?�PIOPVG�D1B@1J13=�./53=4�D929=�M:?:929:1;�PPOUG�W=8=JE=3�D.k�3=>:?9329:1;�4=24/:;=�PPOHG�D.k�PUOPG�D.k�PUOUPG�p=8=;9�s324729=?�l2;=/r�B=3:14?�P�2;4�UR�CD�q25t�UOVG�<238@�D.k�3=>:?9329:1;�4=24/:;=�UOVG�D1B@1J13=�0Tq6D�M:?:929:1;�UOUFG�PPGo�DB3:;>�s=J:;:�p=>:?9329:1;�HONG�D.k�oOSG�<2Y�D.k�3=>:?9329:1;�4=24/:;=�SOHG�D.k�3=>:?9329:1;�4=24/:;=�SOoG�D.k�SOKG�PUGII�.l�l@Y?:8?�P�=u2J�

c$a[]̂ �b̀ _$c<2Y�PFvPVG�D=;:13�k3:Bw01?91;�X7;=�PoG�D=;:13Ol23=;9�02;x7=9�FGIIr�CD�q25t�X7;=�PKG�D=;:13�03=2y52?9wVGII�s324729:1;�l2324=�29�6/=J=;923Y�D8@11/wNGHI�D=;:13�l:8;:8wPIGIIvUGIIX7;=�UPG�<2;42913Y�>324729:1;�3=@=23?2/wVGHIvPIGII�X7;=�UUG�CD�s324729:1;wPPGII�



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

��� �� !!�"#�$%&'()*�+(,-./,0.-�$1/2���3! �� !!�"#�45�6(),7.8���3!�39 !!�"#�#*8)(:)�9�-1/2���3;�� !!�"#�</':0'0)�-1/2���3��� !!�"#�$%&'()*�+/%&0/&-�-1/2���3=�� !!�"#�>7.'?�6(),7.8�-1/2�=�3�5"@�=�; �= !!�":/?-2(:�"A/.?)�B(&*,�CDEFGHDI�JK�LMNJOPGQ�RSFGTUVWXYZ[\�3!�9= �@-/:*-.�<7%]-.-%:-�̂/8�_�3�9�̂/83!�9̀ �6/''7A--%�a0%�B(&*,b�= !!�_�c !!d2eYf[gZ[\33�3 �#/.-%,�@-/:*-.�<7%]-.-%:-)b�#h33�9 �#/.-%,�@-/:*-.�<7%]-.-%:-)b�6/']�̂/833�9�_�i �j0%(7.�6(&*�"''5,/,-33�� �>(%,-.�5d7.,)�5,/.,33�= �#(:,0.-�k$@"l$5�̂/8�B/d'-)�6533�39 �m-,-./%)n�̂/8�_�Bo�5<6oo+33�3= �B65�p'77?�̂.(q-b�c !!�_�9 i!33�3=_3̀ �5-%(7.�6(&*�"''5,/,-33�93�_�9i �@*/%r)&(q(%&�̂/8�p.-/rb�Bo�5<6oo+s[W[gZ[\39�� �+(&*,�4d�B/d'-)39�39 �B/d'-)�65�>(%,-.�<7%:-.,b�̀ !!d239�9;�_�i3 �67'(?/8�k-:-))b�Bo�5<6oo+tuvwu\x3�3�_�3�; �67'(?/8�k-:-))b�Bo�5<6oo+3�̀ �5:*77'�k-7d-%)3�33 �>(%,-.�p/''�̀ !!�_�3! !!3�93 �h/.,(%�+0,*-.�l(%&�̂/8b�Bo�5<6oo+3�99�_�9� �By5�k$z$B@5�${"h53�99�_�9� �6"+a�̂"y5�]7.�/''�65�),0?-%,)|[Z\wu\x9�� �a-}.0/.8�̂/%:-b�̀ !!�_�3! !!d29�3��_�99 �a-}.0/.8�p.-/rb�Bo�5<6oo+~u\W�i�; �5d.(%&�5d7.,)�5,/.,i��_3! �65�h0)(:/'�_�zk$"5$��̀ !!�a.(?/8�/%?�5/,0.?/8b�9 !!7%�50%?/8�i�3� �50d-.(%,-%?-%,�<7%]-.-%:-�̂/8b�Bo�5<6oo+�]7.),0?-%,)i�9= �h0)(:�(%�o0.�5:*77'�h7%,*�<7%:-.,��$5�= i!#hi�9c �5-%(7.�<(,(�-%)�#kohb���65�:/]-b�� i!�_�̀ i!��\��;�3_� �By5�$+"�<p@�"?2(%(),./,(7%�#-.(7?;��_= �By55h"�57'7�a-),;���_�̀ �5.�6(&*�<*7.0)�@.(d�,7�By<;�33 �B65��%?0:,(7%�<-.-27%8;�3�_3c �5d.(%&�p.-/rb�Bo�5<6oo+;�i!_��̀ �By5�h"@6�<p@�"?2(%(),./,(7%�#-.(7?;�9̀�7.���; �#koh~ux;�9̀�7.���; �#koh��=_3̀ �"#�$1/2(%/,(7%�#-.(7?��3! �@-/:*-.�<7%]-.-%:-�̂/8b�6/']�̂/8�]7.�),0?-%,)��3! �6(&*�5:*77'�6-/',*�a/(.��33 �h/.:*(%&�p/%?���+('/:�a-),(q/'��3=_3� �5$B�ok�@k�#b�po5@oB



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� �!"#$�%&'&��())�))*�+&�%,-�./0�)
12345�6789:;<=�>7<?�@�AB<B97�C7DDE12F35�>GHIJK�LMKJ12FN5�O;=:�A9:PPD�Q8R�A:PS�7<?�AT8;<=�UP<9B8RV�W5XXTY12F15�6789:;<=�>7<?�@�CZDRP<12F[5�6789:;<=�>7<?�@�K:B8BE7�\PR78]�6BYP8;7D�UZT12FW5�6789:;<=�>7<?�@�̂7TDBE�6BYP8;7D�H7]�_787?B12FW5�6BYP8;7D�H7]�̀BBaB<?V�̂M�AUOMMbcdef[235�6789:;<=�>7<?�7R�A:B8gZ8<B[2N5�IbM>Qb�\JIĴ KA�Jh7Y[245�6789:;<=�>7<?�@�_7;<RB?�_PER[23i5�AB<;P8�>7<jZBRV�[5NXTY�@ 7̂TDBE�OA�U7kB[231�l�3[5�MZR?PP8�Q?mB<RZ8BE�AT8;<=�K8;T[234lF[5�\JIĴ KA�Jh7Y�Q?Y;<;ER87R;P<�_B8;P?[234lF35�JA�35NX�H;EY;EE7D[2F35�I87?Z7R;P<�\B:B78E7D�kP8�>7<?V�45NX�l�3X5XX[2F3�l�FN5�Q?;8P<?79a�O;a;<=�K8;T[2Fi�l�F15�JA�335XX�H;EY;EE7D[2F35�I87?Z7R;P<�\B:B78E7DV�45NX�@�U7kB[2FF5�I\QHGQKnM̂ V�335XX�@�̂7TDBE�O;=:�A9:PPD�C8P<R�b7S<[2F15�b7ER�H7]�kP8�ERZ?B<RE[2F[5�b7ER�H7]�kP8�ER7kk



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����



���������� ���	
����
������������	�

���������������	����������� �����

�� ������ � !"�#$%&'�(&�)$*+



 
 
Naples Central School District 
   
  

DISTRICT EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN  
  
  
INTRODUCTION  
  
School safety is the job of the entire school community.  This effort requires leadership and coordination 
by school administration, and involvement and participation from all sectors of the school community.  
Planning, conducting drills and participating in exercises with law enforcement, fire, emergency officials 
and other members of the school community ensures a comprehensive, unified approach to school 
emergency response planning.  Building relationships and community engagement are vital to building a 
safer school community.   
  
The purpose of the school Emergency Response Plan (ERP) is to help school officials identify and 
respond to potential emergencies by assigning responsibilities and duties of the school employees, 
students, families, and community stakeholders.  It is important to develop, maintain, train and exercise 
ERPs in order to respond quickly before, during and after an incident.  A well developed and practiced 
ERP provides parents/guardians and the community reassurance that the school has established 
guidelines and procedures to respond to threats and hazards efficiently and effectively.  The Naples 
Central School District uses the NYS planning format in meeting legislative mandates contained in 8 
NYCRR Section 155.17 and provides the use of best practices to improve outcomes following emergency 
situations.  
  
The organization of this plan supports two key practices being adopted in New York State.  First, the 
Naples Central School District Emergency Response Plan provides standardized language that is 
consistent with current national emergency response protocols.  Secondly, consistent formatting within 
the NCSD ERP aligns critical information necessary to improve rapid response to emergencies together in 
the following sections:  
  
 The Basic Plan  
 Functional Annexes  
 Threat/Hazard Specific Annexes  
 
  
The NCSD Plan standardizes language and provides a structured framework similar to ERPs statewide.  
Individualized policies and procedures have been developed locally based on the Naples School District’s 
unique circumstances and resources.  Tools to manage an emergency along with response procedures 
have been developed through threat assessments, safety audits, planning and training.  The Naples 
Emergency Response Plan in conjunction with the New York State Guide to School Emergency Response 
provides for the development of annexes to meet each school’s unique circumstances.  
   



In the “Functional Annexes” portion of the plan there is a focus on critical operational functions within the 
school district and the courses of action developed to carry them out.  To ensure consistency, Naples, as 
well as New York State, will use standardized definitions and suggested best practices for the following 
Functional Annexes:  
  
 Shelter-In-Place  
 Hold-In-Place  
 Evacuation  
 Lockout  
 Lockdown  
 
  
These five Functional Annexes provide a common foundation for response to all emergencies.  The intent 
is to create an environment where students, school staff, and emergency responders recognize the 
language and procedures provided no matter what school they are in or district in our State.  
  
Actions and best practices have been outlined in the Threat/Hazard Annexes section of the Building 
Emergency Response Plan which includes details on what to do in the event of various emergencies.  
  
A copy of the building level safety plan and any amendments thereto, shall be kept on file with the 
appropriate local law enforcement agencies and with the State Police.  
  
Each school year, the Naples Central School District shall conduct the required number of safety drills 
which will include drills from the list of “Functional Annexes” listed above in addition to the traditional fire 
evacuation drill. 



THE BASIC PLAN  
  
The District shall institute and maintain a Safety Team. The Safety Team shall include school personnel 
and local emergency agency representatives.  
  
The Safety Team is responsible for the overall development, maintenance, and revision of the Emergency 
Response Plan (ERP) and for coordinating training and exercising the School ERP.  
  
The complete Naples Central School District Emergency Response Plan shall be distributed to the Ontario 
County Police Department, the NYS Police Department, and the Naples Fire Department.  The NCSD 
ERP shall be updated and maintained and dates of re-distribution recorded.  
  
The school district shall take into consideration the following possible emergencies, but not excluding other 
possible emergencies…  
  
Threat, Hazard Types, and Examples  
   
 

Threat and Hazard Type  Examples  
Natural Hazards:  
  

 
 Earthquakes   
 Tornadoes   
 Lightning   
 Severe wind   
 Hurricanes   
 Floods   
 Wildfires   
 Extreme temperatures   
 Landslides or mudslides    
 Winter precipitation   
 Wildlife  
 
  

Technological Hazards:  
  

 
 Explosions or accidental release of toxins 
from industrial plants   
 Accidental release of hazardous materials 
from within the school, such as gas leaks or 
laboratory spills   
 Hazardous materials releases from major 
highways or railroads   
 Radiological releases from nuclear power 
stations   
 Dam failure   
 Power failure   
 Water failure   
 
  

Biological Hazards:  
  

 
 Infectious diseases  such as pandemic 

   
    

   
     

       
      



 
  

Concept of Operations   
The overall strategy of a NCSD ERP is to execute effective and timely decisions and actions that prevent 
harm, protect lives and property, mitigate damages, restore order and aid recovery.   This plan is based 
upon the concept that the incident management functions that must be performed by the school generally 
parallel some of their daily routine functions.  To the extent possible, the same personnel and material 
resources used for daily activities will be employed during incidents.  Because personnel and equipment 
resources are limited, some routine functions that do not contribute directly to the incident may be 
suspended.  The personnel, equipment, and supplies that would typically be required from those routine 
functions will be redirected to accomplish assigned incident management tasks.   
  
Implementation of Rapid Responder -  Incident Command System (ICS)  
  
The Rapid Responder - Incident Command System (ICS) will be used to manage all incidents and major 
planned events/drills.  The Incident Commander at the school will be delegated the authority to direct all 
incident activities within the school’s jurisdiction.  
  
Initial Response  
  
School personnel are likely to be the first on the scene of an incident in a school setting.  Staff and faculty 
are expected to respond as appropriate and notify the Principal, or designee until command is transferred 
to someone more qualified and/or to an emergency response agency with legal authority to assume 
responsibility (Police, Fire or EMS dependent upon the nature of the incident).  Staff will seek guidance 
and direction from the school district and emergency responders.  
  
Any staff person or faculty in a building that sees or is aware of an emergency shall activate the ERP.  
  

Threat and Hazard Type  Examples  
Natural Hazards:  
  

 
 Earthquakes   
 Tornadoes   
 Lightning   
 Severe wind   
 Hurricanes   
 Floods   
 Wildfires   
 Extreme temperatures   
 Landslides or mudslides    
 Winter precipitation   
 Wildlife  
 
  

Technological Hazards:  
  

 
 Explosions or accidental release of toxins 
from industrial plants   
 Accidental release of hazardous materials 
from within the school, such as gas leaks or 

    
      

     
      

   
     
     
     

 
  

   
  

 
      

   
    

   
     

       
      

   
 
  

    
  

  

 
    
     
       
     
     
       
     
    

 
  



Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities   
The NCSD recognizes the operational organization that will be relied on to manage an incident and 
includes examples of the types of tasks that may be performed by different positions.  
    
The Incident Commander is not able to manage all of the aspects associated with an incident without 
assistance.  The school relies on other key school personnel to perform tasks that will ensure the safety 
of students and staff during a crisis or incident.  The Rapid Responder - Incident Command System (ICS) 
uses a team approach to manage incidents. Each staff member and volunteer must be familiar with his or 
her role and responsibilities before an incident occurs.  
  
Principal  
   
The principal (or their designee) will serve as the Incident Commander and designate a minimum of two 
qualified individuals to serve as alternates in the event that the principal is unable to serve in that role.  At 
all times, the principal still retains the ultimate responsibility for the overall safety of students and staff.    
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Provide direction over all incident management actions based on procedures outlined in this ERP  
 Take steps necessary to ensure the safety of students, staff and others  
 Determine which emergency protocols to implement as described in the functional annexes of this ERP  
 Coordinate/cooperate with emergency responders  
 Keep the Superintendent informed of the situation  
 
  
Teachers / Substitute Teacher / Student Teachers  
  
Teachers shall be responsible for the supervision of students and shall remain with students unless 
directed to do otherwise.   
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Supervise students under their charge  
 Take steps to ensure the safety of students, staff, and other individuals.   
 Take attendance when class relocates to an inside or outside designated area or to an evacuation site  
 Report missing students to the appropriate Emergency Response Team Member  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander.   
 Obtain first aid services for injured students from the school nurse or person trained in first aid.  
Arrange for first aid for those who are unable to be moved  
 Render first aid or CPR if certified and deemed necessary  
 
  
Teaching Assistants   
  
Responsibilities include assisting teachers as directed and actions to ensure the safety of students.  
  



  
Counselors, Social Workers & School Psychologists  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Take steps to ensure the safety of students, staff and other individuals during the implementation of the 
ERP  
 Provide appropriate direction to students as described in this ERP for the incident type  
 Render first aid or CPR and/or psychological aid if trained to do so  
 Assist in the transfer of students, staff and others when their safety is threatened by an emergency  
 Administer counseling services as deemed necessary during or after an incident  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
School Nurse/Health Assistant  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Administer first aid or emergency treatment as needed  
 Supervise administration of first aid by those trained to provide it  
 Organize first aid and medical supplies  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
Custodians/Maintenance Staff  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Survey and report building damage to the Incident Commander  
 Control main shutoff valves for gas, water, and electricity and ensure that no hazard results from broken 
or downed lines  
 Provide damage control as needed  
 Assist in the conservation, use and disbursement of supplies and equipment  
 Control locks and physical security as directed by the Incident Commander  
 Keep Incident Commander informed of the condition of the school  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
Principal’s Secretary/Office Secretaries  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Answer phones and assist in receiving and providing consistent information to callers  
 Provide for the safety of essential school records and documents  
 Provide assistance to the Incident Commander/Principal  
 Monitor radio emergency broadcasts  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
  



Food Service/Cafeteria Workers   
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Prepare and serve food and water on a rationed basis whenever the feeding of students and staff 
becomes necessary during an incident  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
  
  
Bus Drivers  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Supervise the care of students if disaster occurs while students are on the bus  
 Transfer students to new location when directed  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
Other Staff  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Execute assignments as directed by the Incident Commander  
 
  
Students  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Cooperate during emergency drills, exercises and during an incident  
 Follow directions given by facility and staff.  
 Know student emergency actions and assist fellow students in an incident  
 Report situations of concern (e.g. “If you see something, say something.”)  
 Develop an awareness of the high priority threats/hazards and how to take measures to protect against 
and mitigate those threats/hazards  
 
  
Parents/Guardians  
  
Responsibilities include:  
 Encourage and support school safety, violence prevention and incident preparedness programs within 
the school  
 Participate in volunteer service projects for promoting school incident preparedness  
 Provide the school with requested information concerning the incident, early/late dismissals and other 
related release information  
 Listen to and follow directions as provided by the School District.  
 
  
   



Rapid Responder - School Incident Command System   
To provide for effective direction, control and coordination of an incident, the School ERP will be activated 
through the implementation of the Rapid Responder - Incident Command System (ICS).     
  
Staff are assigned to serve within the RR - ICS structure based on their expertise, training and the needs 
of the incident.  Roles should be pre-assigned based on training and qualifications.  
  
  
  
Rapid Responder Collection, Analysis and Dissemination of Information  
  
The School will collect, analyze, and disseminate information during and after an incident through the use 
of Rapid Responder software.  
  
  
  

Training and Exercises  
  
The NCSD understands the importance of training, drills, and exercises in being prepared to deal with an 
incident.  To ensure that school personnel and community responders are aware of their responsibilities 
under the School ERP, the following training and exercise actions should occur.  
  
 drills or rapid dismissals and must include a minimum of 12 drills (e.g. fire drills, lockdown drills, etc.) 
each school year.  
 the emergency response plan shall be tested including sheltering and early dismissal (no earlier than 15 
minutes before normal dismissal).  
 
  
  
   



FUNCTIONAL ANNEXES  
  
The NCSD shall employ the following functional annexes…  
  
  Shelter-In-Place  
  Hold-In-Place  
  Evacuation  
  Lockout  
  Lockdown  
  

1. Shelter-in-Place   
Purpose   
A Shelter-in-Place annex describes courses of action when students and staff are required to remain 
indoors, perhaps for an extended period of time, because it is safer inside the building or a room than 
outside.  Depending on the threat or hazard, students and staff may be required to move to rooms that 
can be sealed (such as in the event of a chemical or biological hazard) or without windows, or to a weather 
shelter (such as in the event of a tornado).  
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  

2. Hold-in-Place  
Purpose  
If there is an internal incident or administrative matter such as students fighting in a hallway, a 
maintenance issue or medical emergency that requires students and staff movement be limited, a 
“Hold-in-Place” may be initiated.  This is intended to keep students and staff out of the affected area until 
the situation can be rectified.   
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  

3. Evacuation  
  
Purpose   
  
This annex focuses on the courses of action that the NCSD will execute to evacuate school buildings and 
grounds.  Included are school policies and procedures for on-site and off-site evacuation including 
evacuation routes, transportation needs, and sheltering sites.  



Evacuation should take place if it is determined that it is safer outside than inside the building (fire, 
explosion, intruder, hazardous material spill) and staff, students and visitors can safely reach the 
evacuation location without danger.  
Specific actions, directions and locations have been excluded from the public version of the District 
Emergency Response Plan for security reasons.  
  
  

4. Lockout  
Purpose  
  
This annex describes the courses of action the NCSD will execute to secure school buildings and grounds 
during incidents that pose an imminent concern outside of the school.  The primary objective of a lockout 
is to quickly ensure all school staff, students, and visitors are secured in the school building away from the 
outside danger.  
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  
5. Lockdown   
Purpose   
This annex describes the courses of action the NCSD will execute to secure school buildings and grounds 
during incidents that pose an immediate threat of violence in or around the school.  The primary 
objective of a lockdown is to quickly ensure all school staff, students and visitors are secured in rooms 
away from immediate danger.    
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  



Crime Scene Management   
  
Purpose   
The NCSD has outlined procedures for securing and restricting access to a potential school district crime 
scene in order to preserve evidence in cases of violent crimes on school property.  
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  
 
  

Communications  
  
Purpose   
  
The NCSD ERP includes communication and coordination during and following emergencies and 
disasters, both internal communication and communication with external stakeholders. Procedures include 
emergency notification of persons in a parental relation.  
  
The NCSD ERP includes policies and procedures governing school incident communications with law 
enforcement and emergency responders, as well as with students, parents, staff, the school community 
and the media.  
  
  
Medical and Mental Health Emergency Annex  
  
Purpose   
  
The NCSD ERP outlines the course of action the district will implement to address emergency medical 
(e.g. first aid) and mental health counseling issues.  The NCSD will coordinate these efforts with 
appropriate local emergency medical services, local law enforcement, local fire department and local 
emergency management representatives.   
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  
  
  
Accounting for All Persons & Reunification  
  
Purpose  
  
The NCSD has developed a course of action to account for the whereabouts and well-being of students, 
staff, and visitors, while identifying those who may be missing.  Each NCSD building principal shall 
maintain their own unique reunification annex that details a safe and secure means of reuniting 
parents/guardians with their children in the event of an emergency.  
  
  
  
Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)  
  
Purpose   
The NCSD has outlined a plan in which a school and/or school district will ensure that essential functions 
continue during an emergency and its immediate aftermath.  This plan includes the continuity of essential 



functions including business services (payroll and purchasing), communication (internal and external), 
computer and systems support, facilities maintenance, safety and security, and continuity of teaching and 
learning.  
  
  
  

THREAT AND HAZARD SPECIFIC ANNEXES  
  
Purpose  
  
The NCSD has developed annexes to ensure that there are procedures in place to protect students/staff 
and school property in the event of an active shooter on school grounds or in the school building, actual 
bomb materials or bomb threats on school grounds and pandemic preparedness.    
  
Specific actions and directions have been excluded from the public version of the District Emergency 
Response Plan for security reasons.  
  



 2018 5551 
 
 

 Non-Instructional/Business 
 Operations 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  ALLOCATION OF TITLE I, PART A FUNDS IN THE DISTRICT  
 
Allocation of Funds 

 
The District allocates the Title I, Part A funds it receives to District school buildings on the basis 

of the total number of students from low-income families in each eligible school attendance area or 
eligible school, as defined in law. Unless the District school building is participating in a school wide 
program, the District school building will only use Title I, Part A funds for programs that provide 
services to eligible children, as defined in law, identified as having the greatest need for special 
assistance.  

 
The District will reserve from its allocation of Title I, Part A funds, such funds as are necessary 

to provide services comparable to those provided to students in District school buildings that receive 
Title I, Part A funds in order to serve:  

 
a) Homeless children and youths, including educationally related support services to children 

in shelters and other locations where children may live;  
 
b) Children in local institutions for neglected children; and  
 
c) If appropriate, children in local institutions for delinquent children, and neglected or 

delinquent children in community day programs.  
 
Funds Will Supplement Not Supplant 
 
 The District will ensure that Title I, Part A funds only supplement, not supplant, the funds that 
would, in the absence of such federal funds, be made available from state and local sources for the 
education of students participating in programs assisted by Title I, Part A funds.  
 
Allocation Methodology  
 
 The District has developed an allocation methodology that is consistent with Title I guidelines. 
 
 
 
20 USC §§ 6312-6315 and 6321 
 
NOTE:  Refer also to Policies    # 5110 -- Budget Planning and Development 

    # 5550 -- Maintenance of Fiscal Effort (Title I Programs) 
                                                        # 8260 -- Title I Parent and Family Engagement 
 
 
 
Adopted: 10/17/18 



 2018 6121 
 1 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE 
 
 The District is committed to maintaining discrimination-free work environment. Sexual 
harassment is one form of workplace discrimination. This policy addresses sexual harassment in the 
workplace and is one component of the District’s commitment to a discrimination-free work 
environment. The District will provide this policy to all employees in writing. The District will post 
the policy prominently throughout the District to the extent practicable.  
 

Sexual harassment is a form of employee misconduct, a violation of District policy, and 
unlawful. Employees of every level who engage in sexual harassment, including supervisory personnel 
who engage in sexual harassment, who knowingly allow such behavior to continue, or fail to report 
suspected sexual harassment will be subject to remedial and/or disciplinary action by the District. 
Sexual harassment may also subject the District to liability for harm to targets of sexual harassment. 
Harassers may also be individually subject to liability. 
 
 This policy applies to all instances of sexual harassment perpetrated against a "covered person," 
regardless of immigration status, by anyone in the workplace, including a co-worker, supervisor, or 
third-party such as a non-employee, paid or unpaid intern, vendor, building security, visitor, volunteer, 
parent, or student. For purposes of this policy, a "covered person" includes: 
 

a) Employees; 
 

b) Applicants for employment;  
 

c) Paid or unpaid interns; and  
 

d) Non-employees, which include anyone who is (or is employed by) a contractor, 
subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or other person providing services pursuant to a contract 
in the workplace. 

 
 Sexual harassment in the workplace can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or 
gender. Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. Sexual harassment 
can occur on school grounds, school buses or District vehicles, and at school-sponsored events, 
programs, or activities, including those that take place at locations off school premises. It can also 
occur while employees are traveling for District business. Calls, texts, emails, and social media usage 
can constitute unlawful workplace harassment, even if they occur away from school grounds, on 
personal devices, or during non-work hours. 
 
What Constitutes Sexual Harassment 
 

 Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and 
(where applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual 
orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity, and the status of being 
transgender. 
 

(Continued)  



 2018 6121 
 2 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 

 
 

SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF DISTRICT PERSONNEL  (Cont'd.) 
 
Sexual harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature, or which is 

directed at an individual because of that individual's sex when: 
 

a) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's 
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, even 
if the reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment; 

 
b) Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or 

 
c) Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions 

affecting an individual's employment. 
 

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, 
jokes, pranks, intimidation or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at 
an individual because of that individual's sex. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted verbal 
or physical advances, sexually explicit derogatory statements or sexually discriminatory remarks made 
by someone which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient discomfort 
or humiliation, which interfere with the recipient's job performance. 
 

Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual 
favors. This can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions or 
privileges of employment. This is also called "quid pro quo" harassment. 
 

Any covered person who feels harassed should report the conduct so that any violation of this 
policy can be corrected promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed 
under this policy. 

 
 

Examples of Sexual Harassment 
 

 The following describes some actions that may constitute unlawful sexual harassment and that 
are strictly prohibited: 
 

a) Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as: 
 

1. Touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another 
person's body or poking another person's body; and 

 
2. Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults. 

 
b) Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as: 

 
 
 

(Continued) 



     2018 6121 
 3 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF DISTRICT PERSONNEL  (Cont'd.) 
 

1. Requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the 
target's job performance evaluation, a promotion or other job benefits or detriments; 
and  

 
2. Subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities. 

 
c) Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks or jokes, or comments about a person's 

sexuality or sexual experience, which create a hostile work environment. 
 

d) Sex stereotyping, which occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered 
inappropriate simply because they may not conform to other people's ideas or perceptions 
about how individuals of a particular sex should act or look. 

 
e) Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as 

pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional material, reading materials, or 
other materials that are sexually demeaning or pornographic. This includes such sexual 
displays on workplace computers or cell phones and sharing such displays while in the 
workplace. 

 
f) Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual's sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, and the status of being transgender, such as: 
 

1. Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person's workstation, tools or equipment, 
or otherwise interfering with the individual's ability to perform the job; 

 
2. Sabotaging an individual's work; and  

 
3. Bullying, yelling, or name-calling. 

 
Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Whistle-Blower Protection) 
 
 Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a covered person from coming 
forward to make or support a sexual harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or occur 
in the workplace to constitute unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence outside of work 
hours).  
 

The District prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed against complainants, victims, witnesses, 
and/or any other individuals who participate in the investigation of a complaint of sexual harassment. 
Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York State 
Human Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in "protected activity." Protected activity 
occurs when a person has: 
 

a) Made a complaint of sexual harassment, either internally or with any anti-discrimination 
agency;  

(Continued) 



 2018 6121 
 4 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 

b) Testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment under the Human Rights 
Law or other anti-discrimination law;  

 
c) Opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint of harassment to a 

supervisor, building principal, other administrator, or the Civil Rights Compliance Officer 
(CRCO);  

 
d) Reported that another employee has been sexually harassed; or  

 
e) Encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment. 

 
Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the 

individual is protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were 
unlawful. However, the retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making intentionally 
false charges of harassment. 
 
Reporting Sexual Harassment 
 

Preventing sexual harassment is everyone's responsibility. The District cannot prevent or remedy 
sexual harassment unless it knows about it. Any covered person who has been subjected to behavior 
that may constitute sexual harassment is encouraged to report such behavior to a supervisor, building 
principal, other administrator, or the CRCO. Anyone who witnesses or becomes aware of potential 
instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior.  
 

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a 
written complaint is posted on the District website, and all covered persons are encouraged to use this 
complaint form. Persons who are reporting sexual harassment on behalf of another person should use 
the complaint form and note that it is being submitted on another person's behalf. 
 

Any person who believes they have been a target of sexual harassment may also seek assistance 
in other available forums, as explained below in the section on Legal Protections. 
 
Supervisory Responsibilities 
 

All supervisors, building principals, and other administrators who receive a complaint or 
information about suspected sexual harassment, observe what may be sexually harassing behavior or 
for any reason suspect that sexual harassment is occurring, are required to report such suspected sexual 
harassment to the CRCO. In the event the CRCO is the alleged harasser, the report will be directed to 
another CRCO, if the District has designated another individual to serve in that capacity. 
 

 (Continued) 
 



 2018 6121 
 5 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 

In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in sexually harassing conduct 
themselves, supervisors, building principals, and other administrators will be subject to discipline for 
failing to report suspected sexual harassment or otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to 
continue.  
 

Supervisors, building principals, and other administrators will also be subject to discipline for 
engaging in any retaliation. 
 
Investigating Complaints 
 

All complaints or information about sexual harassment will be investigated, whether that 
information was reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a timely 
manner, and will be confidential to the extent possible. 
 

An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual harassment 
will be prompt and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon as possible. The 
investigation will be kept confidential to the extent possible. Disclosure may, however, be necessary to 
complete a thorough investigation of the charges and/or notify law enforcement officials. All persons 
involved, including complainants, witnesses, and alleged harassers will be accorded due process, as 
outlined below, and in accordance with any applicable collective bargaining agreements to protect 
their rights to a fair and impartial investigation.  
 

The District will not tolerate retaliation against anyone who files complaints, supports another's 
complaint, or participates in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy. 
 

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations should be done in accordance with 
the following steps: 
 

a) Upon receipt of a complaint, the CRCO will conduct an immediate review of the 
allegations, and take any interim actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to refrain from 
communications with the complainant), as appropriate. In the event that the CRCO is the 
alleged harasser, the complaint will be directed to another CRCO or District designee for 
investigation. 

 
b) If a complaint is verbal, encourage the individual to complete the complaint form, which is 

available on the District website, in writing. If he or she refuses, prepare a complaint form 
based on the verbal reporting.  

 
c) If documents, emails, or phone records are relevant to the investigation, take steps to obtain 

and preserve them.  
 

d) Request and review all relevant documents, including all electronic communications. 
 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 6121 
 6 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 

 
e) Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses. If a student is involved, the 

District will follow all applicable District policies and procedures regarding questioning 
students.  

 
f) Create written documentation of the investigation (such as a letter, memo or email), which 

contains the following: 
 

1. A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant 
documents; 

 
2. A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their 

statements; 
 

3. A timeline of events; 
 

4. A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and 
 

5. The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any 
corrective action(s). 

 
g) Keep the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential 

location. 
 

h) Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the 
complaint was made of the final determination and implement any corrective actions 
identified in the written document. 

 
i) Inform the individual who reported of the right to file a complaint or charge externally as 

outlined in the next section. 
 
 If an investigation reveals that discrimination or harassment has occurred, the District will take 
immediate corrective action as warranted. This action will be taken in accordance with applicable laws 
and regulations, as well as any and all relevant codes of conduct, District policies and administrative 
regulations, collective bargaining agreements, and/or third-party contracts.  
 
Annual Training 
 
 The District will provide a sexual harassment prevention training program to all employees on 
an annual basis. The training will be interactive and will include:  
 

a) An explanation of sexual harassment consistent with guidance issued by the Department of 
Labor in consultation with the Division of Human Rights; 

 
b) Examples of conduct that would constitute unlawful sexual harassment; 

 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 6121 
 7 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 

c) Information concerning the federal and state statutory provisions concerning sexual 
harassment and remedies available to victims of sexual harassment; 

 
d) Information concerning employees’ rights of redress and all available forums for 

adjudicating complaints; and  
 

e) Information addressing conduct by supervisors and any additional responsibilities for such 
supervisors. 

 
Legal Protections and External Remedies 
 

Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by the District but is also prohibited by state, federal, 
and, where applicable, local law. 
  

Aside from the District’s internal process, individuals may also choose to pursue legal remedies 
with the following governmental entities. While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint 
with a governmental agency, an individual may seek the legal advice of an attorney. 
 

In addition to those outlined below, individuals may have additional legal protections.  
 
State Human Rights Law (HRL) 
 

The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to 
all employers in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects covered persons, 
regardless of immigration status. A complaint alleging violation of the Human Rights Law may be 
filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New York State Supreme Court. 
 

Complaints with DHR may be filed any time within one year of the harassment. If an individual 
did not file with DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the HRL, within three years of the 
alleged sexual harassment. An individual may not file with DHR if they have already filed a HRL 
complaint in state court. 
 

Complaining internally to the District does not extend your time to file with DHR or in court. 
The one year or three years is counted from the date of the most recent incident of harassment. 
 

Individuals do not need an attorney to file a complaint with DHR, and there is no cost to file with 
DHR. 
 

DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe 
that sexual harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before an 
administrative law judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, DHR has the power to award 
relief, which varies but may include requiring your employer to take action to stop the harassment, or 
redress the damage caused, including paying of monetary damages, attorney's fees and civil fines. 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 6121 
 8 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 

DHR's main office contact information is: NYS Division of Human Rights, One Fordham Plaza, 
Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458. Individuals may call (718) 741-8400 or visit: 
www.dhr.ny.gov. 
 

Contact DHR at (888) 392-3644 or visit dhr.ny.gov/complaint for more information about filing 
a complaint. The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded, filled out, notarized and 
mailed to DHR. The website also contains contact information for DHR's regional offices across New 
York State.  
 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-
discrimination laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 USC § 
2000e et seq.). An individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days from the 
harassment. There is no cost to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate the 
complaint, and determine whether there is reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has 
occurred, at which point the EEOC will issue a Right to Sue letter permitting the individual to file a 
complaint in federal court.  
 

The EEOC does not hold hearings or award relief, but may take other action including pursuing 
cases in federal court on behalf of complaining parties. Federal courts may award remedies if 
discrimination is found to have occurred. In general, private employers must have at least 15 
employees to come within the jurisdiction of the EEOC. 
 

An individual alleging discrimination at work can file a "Charge of Discrimination." The EEOC 
has district, area, and field offices where complaints can be filed. Contact the EEOC by calling 1-800-
669-4000 (TTY: 1-800-669-6820), visiting their website at www.eeoc.gov or via email at 
info@eeoc.gov. 
 

If an individual filed an administrative complaint with DHR, DHR will file the complaint with 
the EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court. 
 
Title IX 
 

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in 
any federally funded education program or activity. The U.S. Department of Education’s Office for 
Civil Rights (OCR) enforces Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972.  
 

For more information about how to file a complaint, contact OCR at 800-421-3481 (TDD 800-
877-8339) or visit: https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/howto.html. The website contains 
information about filing the complaint online, by mail, or by email.  
 
 

(Continued) 
 



 2018 6121 
 9 of 9 

 
 Personnel 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 
 
Local Protections 
 

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination. 
An individual should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law 
exists.  
 
Local Police Department 
 

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement or coerced 
sex acts, the conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department. 
 
 
 
 
 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 United States Code (USC) Section 2000e et seq. 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 United States Code (USC) Section 1681 et seq. 
29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 1604.11(a) 
34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Subtitle B, Chapter 1 
Civil Service Law Section 75-B 
Executive Law Article 15 
Labor Law § 201-g 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies #3420 -- Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the District 

#6122 -- Employee Grievances 
#7551 -- Sexual Harassment of Students 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: 06/27/07 
Revised:    07/13/11 
Revised:    12/17/14 
Adopted:   10/17/18 
 



2018 6121F 
 1 of 3 
 

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

COMPLAINT FORM FOR SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE 
 
 
If you believe that you have been subjected to sexual harassment, you are encouraged to complete this 
form and submit it to the Civil Rights Compliance Officer (CRCO). You will not be retaliated against 
for filing a complaint. Questions regarding the completion or submission of this form can be directed 
to the District's CRCO or a trusted staff member with whom you feel comfortable. 
 
If you are more comfortable reporting verbally or in another manner, the person to whom you report 
the sexual harassment should complete this form, provide you with a copy and follow its sexual 
harassment prevention policy by investigating the claims as outlined at the end of this form.  
 

For additional resources, visit:  ny.gov/programs/combating-sexual-harassment-workplace 
 
COMPLAINANT INFORMATION 
 
Name:   
 
Work Address:    Work Phone:   
 

  
 
Job Title:    Email:   
 
Selected Preferred Communication Method: [  ] Email    [  ] Phone    [  ] In person 
 
 
SUPERVISORY INFORMATION 
 
Immediate Supervisor's Name:   
 
Title:   
 
Work Phone:   Work Address:   
 

   
 
 
COMPLAINT INFORMATION 
 
1) Your complaint of Sexual Harassment is made about: 
 

Name:    Title:   
 

Work Address:    Work Phone:   
 
   

 
Relationship to you:    [  ] Supervisor    [  ] Subordinate    [  ] Co-Worker    [  ] Other 

 
(Continued)  



2018 6121F 
 2 of 3 
 

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

COMPLAINT FORM FOR SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 
2) Please describe what happened and how it is affecting you and your work. Please use additional 

sheets of paper if necessary and attach any relevant documents or evidence. 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
3) Date(s) sexual harassment occurred:   
 

Is the sexual harassment continuing?    [  ] Yes    [  ] No 
 
4) Please list the name and contact information of any witnesses or individuals who may have 

information related to your complaint: 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
The last question is optional, but may help the investigation. 
 
5) Have you previously complained or provided information (verbal or written) about related 

incidents? If yes, when and to whom did you complain or provide information? 
 

  
 

  
 

If you have retained legal counsel and would like us to work with them, please provide their 
contact information.  

 
  

 
  

 
 
 
Signature:     Date:   
 
 
Instructions for the District 
 
 After receiving a complaint about alleged sexual harassment, follow the District's sexual 
harassment prevention policies and procedures. 
 

(Continued)  



2018 6121F 
 3 of 3 
 

NAPLES CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

COMPLAINT FORM FOR SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE  (Cont'd.) 
 
 
 Generally, an investigation involves: 
 

1) Speaking with the employee; 
 

2) Speaking with the alleged harasser; 
 

3) Interviewing witnesses; and 
 

4) Collecting and reviewing any related documents. 
 
 While the process may vary from case to case, all allegations should be investigated promptly 
and resolved as quickly as possible. The investigation should be kept confidential to the extent 
possible. 
 
 Document the findings of the investigation and basis for the District's decision along with any 
corrective actions taken and notify the complainant and the individual(s) against whom the complaint 
was made. This may be done via email.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: 10/17/18 



 
 2018 7134  

 1 of 6 
 

 Students 
  

 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE 
 

The District recognizes the importance of educational stability for students in foster care and will 
collaborate, as appropriate, with the State Education Department (SED) and the local Department of 
Social Services (LDSS) to ensure that students in foster care have the same opportunity to achieve at 
the high-levels as their peers. For purposes of this policy, LDSS also refers to the local Social Services 
District or the local child welfare agency. 
 
Definitions  
 
a) Child or youth in foster care ("student in foster care") means a child who is in the care and 

custody or custody and guardianship of a local Commissioner of Social Services or the 
Commissioner of the Office of Children and Family Services. 

 
b) Feeder school means:  
 

1. A preschool whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary school or group of 
elementary schools upon completion of that preschool; 

 
2. A school whose students are entitled to attend a specified elementary, middle, intermediate, 

or high school or group of specified elementary, middle, intermediate, or high schools upon 
completion of the terminal grade of such school; or 

 
3. A school that sends its students to a receiving school in a neighboring school district 

pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. 
 
c) Foster care means 24-hour substitute care for children placed away from their parents or 

guardians and for whom the state or tribal child welfare agency has placement and care 
responsibility. This includes, but is not limited to, placements in foster family homes, foster 
homes of relatives, group homes, emergency shelters, residential facilities, child care institutions, 
and pre-adoptive homes. A child is in foster care regardless of whether the foster care facility is 
licensed and payments are made by the state, tribal or local agency for the care of the child, 
whether adoption subsidy payments are being made prior to the finalization of an adoption, or 
whether there is federal matching of any payments that are made. 

 
d) Preschool means a publicly funded prekindergarten program administered by SED or a local 

educational agency or a Head Start program administered by a local educational agency and/or 
services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) administered by a local 
educational agency. 

 
e) Receiving school means: 
 

1. A school that enrolls students from a specified or group of preschools, elementary schools, 
middle schools, intermediate schools, or high schools; or 

 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 7134  
 2 of 6 

 
 Students 
  

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE  (Cont'd.) 
 

2. A school that enrolls students from a feeder school in a neighboring local educational 
agency pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. 

 
f) School district of origin means the school district within New York State in which the child or 

youth in foster care was attending a public school or preschool on a tuition-free basis or was 
entitled to attend at the time of placement into foster care when the Social Services District or the 
Office of Children and Family Services assumed care and custody or custody and guardianship 
of such child or youth, which is different from the school district of residence. 

 
g) School district of residence means the public school district within New York State in which 

the foster care placement is located, which is different from the school district of origin. 
 
h) School of origin means a public school that a child or youth attended at the time of placement 

into foster care, or the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled, including a preschool 
or a charter school. For a child or youth in foster care who completes the final grade level served 
by the school of origin, the term school of origin will include the designated receiving school at 
the next grade level for all feeder schools. Where the child is eligible to attend school in the 
school district of origin because the child was placed in foster care after such child is eligible to 
apply, register, or enroll in the public preschool or kindergarten or the child is living with a 
school-age sibling who attends school in the school district of origin, the school of origin will 
include any public school or preschool in which such child would have been entitled or eligible 
to attend based on such child's last residence before the circumstances arose which caused such 
child to be placed in foster care.  

 
District Foster Care Liaison 
 

The District will designate an appropriate staff person to act as the District's point of contact for 
students in foster care (i.e., the "Foster Care Liaison"). The Foster Care Liaison will not be the same 
staff person as the McKinney-Vento Liaison unless the McKinney-Vento Liaison has sufficient ability 
to carry out the responsibilities of both roles.  
 

The Foster Care Liaison will work collaboratively with representatives from the LDSS.  
 

The District will ensure that the name and contact information for the Foster Care Liaison are: 
 

a) Submitted to SED;  
 
b) Provided, in writing, to the point of contact for any LDSS known by the District to have 

students in its custody; and 
 
c) Posted on the District website.  

 
 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 7134  
 3 of 6 

 
 Students 
  

 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE  (Cont'd.) 
 
Designation of School District and School  
 

The LDSS, in consultation with the appropriate local educational agency or agencies, will 
determine whether placement in the school district of origin or the school district of residence is in the 
best interest of a student in foster care. Provided that the District is an appropriate local educational 
agency, the District will work with the LDSS to make the best interest determination as quickly as 
possible in order to prevent educational discontinuity for the student. If the student has an 
Individualized Education Program (IEP), a Section 504 plan, or is an English language learner, 
relevant school staff may be consulted during the best interest determination process. 
 

To the extent feasible and appropriate, the student should remain in his or her school of origin 
while the best interest determination is being made.  

 
Subject to a best interest determination, a student in foster care is entitled to attend the school of 

origin or any school that children and youth who live in the attendance area in which the foster care 
placement is located are eligible to attend, including a preschool, for the duration of the student's 
placement in foster care and until the end of the school year in which he or she is no longer in foster 
care, and for one additional year if that year constitutes the student's terminal year in that building. 
 

Where the school district of origin or school of origin that a student was attending on a tuition-
free basis, or was entitled to attend when the student entered foster care is located, in New York State 
and the student's foster care placement is located in a contiguous state, the student is entitled to attend 
his or her school of origin or any school that children and youth who live in the attendance area in 
which the foster care placement is located are eligible to attend, including a preschool, subject to a 
best interest determination, for the duration of the student's placement in foster care and until the end 
of the school year in which he or she is no longer in foster care, and for one additional year if that year 
constitutes the student's terminal year in such building. 
 
Responsibilities When Designated as the School District of Attendance  
 

If the District is designated as the school district of attendance for a student in foster care, the 
District will immediately: 
 

a) Enroll the student in foster care, even if the student is unable to produce records which are 
normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic records, records of 
immunization and/or other required health records, proof of residency or other 
documentation and/or even if the student has missed application or enrollment deadlines 
during any period of placement in foster care, if applicable;  

 
b) Treat the student in foster care as a resident for all purposes; and 
 
c) Make a written request to the school district where the student's records are located in order 

to obtain a copy of the student's records and coordinate the transmittal of these records in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 
(Continued) 



 2018 7134  
 4 of 6 

 
 Students 
  

 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE  (Cont'd.) 
 
Request for Records 
 

Within five days of receipt of a request for school records from a new school, the District will 
forward, in a manner consistent with federal and state law, a complete copy of the records of the 
student in foster care, including, but not limited to: proof of age; academic records; evaluations; 
immunization records; and guardianship papers (if applicable).  
 
Tuition Reimbursement 
 

Except as otherwise provided in law or regulation, the cost of instruction of a student in foster 
care will be borne by the school district of origin. Where a district other than the school district of 
origin is designated as the school district of attendance, the cost of instruction will be borne by the 
school district of origin and the tuition paid to the designated school district of attendance will be 
computed in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.   

 
Transportation Responsibilities 

 
Any student in foster care who requires transportation in order to attend his or her school of 

origin, is entitled to receive that transportation.  
 
As appropriate, the District will coordinate and collaborate with the LDSS to make an 

appropriate transportation plan that supports the student's school stability plan and is fair to the 
District's taxpayers, consistent with the District's obligations under federal and state law.  

 
When the District is the designated school district of attendance, and the student requires 

transportation to attend his or her school of origin, the District will provide transportation to and from 
the student's foster care placement location and the school of origin. The costs for transportation may 
be aidable pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.  
 

When the District is the school district of residence and the designated school district of 
attendance, and the student does not attend his or her school of origin, the District will provide 
transportation on the same basis as provided to resident students. The costs for transportation may be 
aidable pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.  

 
When transporting students in foster care, the District may incur excess transportation costs, as 

defined by law. The District and the LDSS may enter into a written agreement relating to how excess 
transportation costs should be funded, consistent with applicable laws and regulations. Absent such an 
agreement, excess transportation costs incurred by the District will be shared equally between the 
LDSS responsible for the foster care costs of the student and the designated school district of 
attendance. The District and the LDSS will consider and utilize all allowable funding sources, 
including any available federal funds, to cover excess transportation costs.  

 
 

(Continued) 
 
 



 2018 7134  
 5 of 6 

 
 Students 
  

 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE (Cont'd.) 

 
Where a student in foster care has been placed in foster care in a contiguous state, and the 

District is the designated district of attendance, the District will collaborate with the LDSS to arrange 
for transportation.  
 
Where the School of Origin is a Charter School  
 

Where the school of origin is a charter school, the school district designated as the school district 
of attendance for a student in foster care will be deemed to be the school district of residence for the 
student for purposes of fiscal and programmatic responsibility and will be responsible for 
transportation of the student in foster care. If the designated school district of attendance is not the 
school district of origin, the designated school district of attendance may seek reimbursement from the 
school district of origin in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Dispute Resolution Process 
 

To the extent feasible and appropriate, the District will ensure that a student in foster care 
remains in his or her school of origin while any dispute is being resolved in order to minimize 
disruptions and reduce the number of moves between schools. 
 
Coordination with Other Agencies  
 

The District will coordinate the provision of services described in this policy, as appropriate, 
with agencies or programs providing services to students in foster care. 

  
The District will coordinate with other school districts on inter-district issues, such as 

transportation or transfer of school records.  
 
The District will coordinate implementation of the above provision of services with the 

requirements of IDEA for students with disabilities.  
 
Comparable Services 
 

Each student in foster care will be provided services comparable to other students in the school 
of attendance, including: transportation services; educational services for which the student meets 
eligibility criteria; educational programs for students with disabilities; educational programs for 
English learners; programs in career and technical education; programs for gifted and talented 
students; and school nutrition programs.  

 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 7134  
 6 of 6 

 
 Students 
  

 
 
 
SUBJECT: EDUCATION OF STUDENTS IN FOSTER CARE  (Cont'd.) 
 
Student Privacy 
 

As appropriate, the District will collaborate with SED and/or the LDSS to determine what 
documentation related to a student in foster care should be shared among involved parties. In all cases, 
the District will comply with all statutory requirements to protect student privacy, including the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and any other applicable privacy requirements 
under federal, state, or local laws.  
 
 
 
45 USC § 6312 
45 CFR § 1355.20(a) 
US DOE, Non-Regulatory Guidance: Ensuring Stability for Children in Foster Care (June 23, 2016) 
Education Law §§ 3202 and 3244 
Memorandum from NY St. Educ. Department on Educational Stability and Transportation Provisions for 
Students in Foster Care Memo (December 2, 2016) 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies  #5660 -- Meal Charging and Prohibition Against Meal Shaming 

 #7240 -- Student Records: Access and Challenge 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: 10/17/18 
 



 2018 7222 
 1 of 3 
 

 Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH 
                        DISABILITIES 
 
 The District will provide students with disabilities appropriate opportunities to earn a diploma or 
other exiting commencement credential in accordance with Commissioner's regulations. During the 
student's annual review, the District will evaluate graduation opportunities and identify the means to 
achieve them. As part of this process, the District: 
 

a) Will coordinate activities with guidance personnel and BOCES staff to ensure that students 
meet credit and sequence requirements and to consider them for vocational opportunities.  

 
b) May modify instructional techniques and materials. Any modifications will be included on 

a student's Individual Education Plan (IEP) so that they can be implemented consistently 
throughout the student's program. 

 
c) Will review special education instructional programs to ensure equivalency with the same 

courses taught in the general education program. 
 
d) Will coordinate communication between special and general education staff so that all staff 

members understand required skills and competencies, and to establish equivalency of 
instruction in special education classes. 

 
Graduation and transition plans will take into account the various pathways available to these 

students. For students with IEPs, the District will plan transition services for post-secondary life as 
early as possible, but no later than the school year in which the student turns age 15. The transition 
activities will focus on improving both the student's academic and functional achievement. The plan 
will explore post-secondary opportunities and employment options and, if applicable, connection with 
adult service agencies that may provide the student with services after exiting school. 

 
The District may award these diplomas or credentials, or both: 
 
a) Local diploma:  available to students with an IEP or a Section 504 accommodation plan 

that specifies a local diploma. Students must comply with credit requirements. The 
available assessments to earn a local diploma include: 

 
1. Low-pass safety net option:  students must achieve a score of 55 or higher on five 

required Regents exams.  
 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



 2018 7222 
             2 of 3 

 Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH 
                        DISABILITIES  (Cont'd.) 

 
2. Low-pass safety net and appeal:  available to students who score 52-54 on up to two 

Regents exams, successfully appeal those scores, and meet other applicable 
conditions. 

 
 
3. Regents Competency Test (RCT) safety net option:  a student who enters grade 9 

before September 2011 must pass a corresponding RCT if he or she does not attain a 
score of 55 or higher on the Regents examination. 

  
4. Compensatory safety net option:  except for scores on ELA and math exams, students 

may use one Regents exam score of 65 or above to compensate for a Regents exam 
score of 45-54. Students must score at least 55 (or successfully appeal a score of 52-
54) on both the ELA and a math exam.  

 
5. Superintendent's determination:  students who are unable to demonstrate their 

proficiency on standard state assessments because of one or more disabilities may be 
able to graduate upon the Superintendent's review and written certification of their 
eligibility. The Superintendent will make a determination after receiving a written 
request from an eligible student's parent or guardian. (Students with a Section 504 
accommodation plan may not use this option.)  

 
b) Career Development and Occupational Studies commencement credential (CDOS):  any 

student who is not assessed using the New York State Alternate Assessment (NYSAA) 
may earn the CDOS commencement credential as a supplement to a Regents or local 
diploma or as his or her only exiting credential if the student attended school for at least 12 
years, excluding kindergarten. The student must meet criteria specified by the State 
Education Department (SED) confirming that he or she has attained the standards-based 
knowledge, skills, and abilities necessary for entry-level employment.  

 
c) Skills and Achievement (SA) commencement credential:  students with severe disabilities 

who are assessed using the NYSAA may earn the SA commencement credential. They 
must attend school for at least 12 years, excluding kindergarten. The District must 
document the student's skills, strengths, and levels of independence in academic, career 
development, and foundation skills needed for post-secondary life.  

 
 

  
 

(Continued) 



 2018 7222 
             3 of 3 

 Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: DIPLOMA AND/OR CREDENTIAL OPTIONS FOR STUDENTS WITH 
                        DISABILITIES  (Cont'd.) 

 
 
 

Education Law §§ 3202 and 4402 
8 NYCRR §§ 100.1, 100.2, 100.5, 100.6, 200.4 and 200.5  
 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policy #7220 -- Graduation Options/Early Graduation/Accelerated Programs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  06/27/07 
Revised:  02/16/11 
Revised:  02/15/12 
Revised:  05/02/12 
Revised:     01/09/13 
Revised:     10/16/13 
Revised:     10/17/16 
Revised:     04/12/17 
Revised:     04/18/18 
Revised:     10/17/18 
 



 2018 7223 
 
 

 Students 
 

 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: PARTICIPATION IN HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION EXERCISE 
 
 Any student who has satisfactorily completed all graduation requirements will be permitted to 
participate in the graduation ceremony and all related graduation activities.  
 
 The District permits any student to participate in the graduation ceremony and all related 
graduation activities of his or her high school graduating class, if the student has been awarded a Skills 
and Achievement Commencement Credential or a Career Development and Occupational Studies 
(CDOS) Commencement Credential, but has not otherwise qualified to receive a Regents or local 
diploma. While permitted to participate, these students are not required to participate in the graduation 
ceremony or related graduation activities of his or her high school graduating class. For purposes of 
this policy, a student’s high school graduating class is the twelfth grade class with which he or she 
entered into ninth grade. 
 
 The District will provide annual written notice of policy and any related procedures to all 
students and their parents or guardians. 
 
 
 
Education Law § 3204(4-b) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: 06/27/07 
Revised: 10/17/18 



2018 7554 
 1 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: STUDENT GENDER IDENTITY 
 
 All students need a safe and supportive educational environment to progress academically and 
developmentally. The District is committed to fostering a safe learning environment for all students, 
free from discrimination and harassment on the basis of sex, gender, gender identity, gender 
nonconformity, and gender expression. In accordance with applicable law, regulations, and guidelines, 
the District will ensure that students have equal access to all school programs, facilities, and activities. 
The District will assess and address the specific needs of each student on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Key Terms 
 
 Generally, District personnel should use the language that individual students are using to 
describe their own gender identity, appearance, or behavior. The most commonly used terms are: 
 

Cisgender:  a person whose gender identity corresponds to their assigned sex at birth. 
 

Gender:  actual or perceived sex, typically with reference to social and cultural differences rather 
than physiological ones. 
 

Gender expression:  the ways a person conveys their gender identity to others, such as through 
behavior, appearance, clothing, hairstyle, activities, voice, and mannerisms. 
 

Gender identity:  a person's inner sense or psychological knowledge of being male, female, 
neither, or both. 
 

Gender nonconforming (GNC):  describes someone whose gender identity or gender expression 
does not conform to social or stereotypical expectations of a person with that gender assigned at birth. 
This is also referred to as gender variant or gender atypical.  
 

Transgender:  someone whose gender identity is different than their gender assigned at birth. 
 

Transition:  the process by which a person socially or physically aligns their gender expression 
more closely to their gender identity than their assigned sex at birth. 
 
Records 
 

As required by law, the District will maintain the confidentiality of student information and 
records. If a transgender or GNC student has officially changed his or her name, as demonstrated by 
court order or birth certificate, the District will change its official and unofficial records, as needed, to 
reflect the change. The District will maintain records with the student's assigned birth name in a 
separate, confidential file. 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



2018 7554 
 2 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: STUDENT GENDER IDENTITY  (Cont'd.) 
 

If a transgender or GNC student has not officially changed his or her name, but wishes to be 
referred to by a different name that corresponds to their gender identity, the District may create or 
change unofficial records to reflect the name and gender identity that the student consistently asserts at 
school. On state standardized tests, certain reports to the New York State Education Department, and 
when necessary to ensure appropriate and coordinated medical care, however, the District will use the 
student's legal name and gender. Any student identification cards will be issued with the name 
reflecting the gender identity the student consistently asserts at school. The District will maintain 
records with the student's assigned birth name and gender in a separate, confidential file. 
 
Names and Pronouns 
 
 When apprised of a student's transgender or GNC status, the District will endeavor to engage the 
student and his or her parents or guardians, as appropriate, in an effort to agree upon a plan that will 
accommodate the student's individual needs at school. Transgender and GNC students have the right 
to discuss and convey their gender identity and expression openly and to decide when, with whom, 
and how much to share this confidential information. The plan may therefore include when and how to 
initiate the student's preferred name and associated pronoun use and if, when, and how this is 
communicated to others. District staff will use the name and pronoun that corresponds to the gender 
identity the student consistently asserts at school. 
 
Restrooms and Locker Rooms 
 

The District will allow a transgender or GNC student to use the restroom and locker room that 
corresponds to the student's consistently expressed gender identity at school. Any student requesting 
increased privacy or other accommodations when using bathrooms or locker rooms will be provided 
with a safe and adequate alternative, but they will not be required to use that alternative. 
 
Physical Education and Sports 
 
 Physical education is a required part of the District's curriculum. Where these classes are sex-
segregated, students will be allowed to participate in a manner consistent with their gender identity. 
Students will likewise be allowed to participate in intramural activities consistent with their gender 
identity. 
 
 Upon written notification that a transgender or GNC student would like an opportunity to 
participate in the District's interscholastic athletics program consistent with his or her gender identity, 
the District will determine his or her eligibility in accordance with applicable law, regulations, and 
guidelines. The District will confirm the student's asserted gender identity with documentation it 
considers appropriate from a parent/guardian, counselor, doctor, psychologist, psychiatrist, or other 
medical professionals. The student's gender identity should be the same as the identity used for 
District registration and other school purposes. 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



2018 7554 
 3 of 3 
 
Students 

 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: STUDENT GENDER IDENTITY  (Cont'd.) 
 

The District's athletic director will notify opposing team athletic directors or the New York State 
Public High School Athletic Association if a student needs any accommodations during competitions. 
Any appeal regarding the District's eligibility decision will be directly to the Commissioner of 
Education. 
 
Other Activities 
 

Generally, in other circumstances where students may be sex-segregated, such as overnight field 
trips, students may be permitted to participate in accordance with the gender identity that the student 
consistently asserts at school. Student privacy concerns will be addressed individually and on a case-
by-case basis in accordance with District policy and applicable law, regulations, and guidelines.  
 
Dress Code and Team Uniforms 
 
 Transgender or GNC students may dress in accordance with their gender identity or expression, 
within the parameters of the District's dress code. The District will not restrict students' clothing or 
appearance on the basis of gender.  
 
 The District's dress code applies while its athletes are traveling to and from athletic contests. 
Athletes will have access to uniforms that are appropriate for their sport. 
 
 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 USC § 1232g 
34 CFR Part 99 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
Education Law Article 2 and §§ 2-d, 11(7), 3201-a 
8 NYCRR § 100.2 
 
NOTE: Refer also to Policies #3410 -- Code of Conduct on School Property 

#3420 -- Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the School 
District 

#7560 – Dignity for all Students 
#7551 -- Sexual Harassment of Students 
#7553 -- Hazing of Students 
#8242 -- Civility, Citizenship and Character Education/Interpersonal 

Violence Prevention Education 
 
 
 
Adopted: 11/04/15 
Reviewed: 01/31/18 
Reviewed: 10/03/18 


	01 - Regular Meeting of October 17, 2018 - AGENDA - Initial.pdf
	02 - Regular Meeting of October 17, 2018 - BLANK MINUTES
	03 - Claims Auditor Reports - 2017-2018 4th Quarter & 2018-2019 1st Quarter
	04 - Administrative Report - Secondary - 2018-10-17
	06 - Naples CSD Emergency Response Plan
	07 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #5551 - Allocation of Title I, Part A Funds in the District - NEW POLICY
	08 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #6121 - Sexual Harrasment in the Workplace - FINAL Version
	10 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #6121F - Sexual Harrasment in the Workplace - COMPLAINT FORM - FINAL Version
	11 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #7134 - Education of Students in Foster Care - NEW POLICY
	12 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #7222 -Diploma-Credential Options for Students w Disabilities - FINAL Version
	14 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #7223 - Participation in Graduation Ceremonies & Activities - FINAL Version
	16 - Adopted 2018-10-17 - Policy #7554 - Student Gender Identity - FINAL Version

